

ORDINANCE NO. 190-03-101

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAUDERHILL, FLORIDA AMENDING THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS (LDR) TO AMEND SCHEDULE L, ENGINEERING STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES, IN ITS ENTIRETY BY AMENDING SECTIONS 1 THROUGH 6 AS A COMPREHENSIVE AMENDMENT TO UPDATE THE ENGINEERING STANDARDS, PROCEDURES AND FORMS FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES CITYWIDE; PROVIDING FOR AN ENGINEERING MANUAL WHICH CONTAINS THE FORMS REFERENCED IN SECTION 6; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE (REQUESTED BY CITY MANAGER, CHARLES FARANDA).

WHEREAS, The Engineering Standards and Procedures were last updated in 1997. Since that time and now, there have been many changes to technologies, materials, and procedures used as it relates to infrastructure improvement; and

WHEREAS, the Engineering Division has been working hand in hand with Langan Engineering to review our Engineering Standards and Procedures as it existed to remove obsolete sections and to update all sections necessary to reflect current standard practices and best management practices; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission wishes to adopt these amendments to update the Engineering Standards and Procedures to bring them up to date;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAUDERHILL, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. Land Development Regulations, Schedule L, Engineering Standards and Procedures for Land Development Activities is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

SCHEDULE L - ENGINEERING STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES⁽⁴⁾

Footnotes:

--- (4) ---

Editor's note— Section 1 of Ord. No. 98O-11-163, adopted November 23, 1998, repealed Sch. L in its entirety and added a new Sch. L to read as set forth herein. Formerly, Sch. L consisted of §§ 1.00—6.00, which pertained to construction and design standards for streets, drainage, paving, utilities and other required project improvements and derived from the original Land Development Regulations; Ord. No. 95-115, § 9, adopted March 27, 1995; and Ord. No. 97O-130, § 1, adopted July 14, 1997.

SECTION 1 - GENERAL PROCEDURES

1.01 SITE PLAN REVIEW

A. All drawings submitted to the Engineering Division of the Environmental and Engineering Department must be ~~a maximum size of 24" x 36"~~ or 11"x17".

B. All drawings must show linear feet of storm drains and linear footage of roadways.

C. All of the following items must be received by the ~~Community Development Department~~ Planning and Zoning Division at least ten (10) working days prior to the scheduled date of the Department Review Committee (DRC) meeting.

1. Site Plan to be reviewed
2. Copy of recorded plat and/or survey
3. Broward County's conditions for plat approval
4. Schematic engineering plans showing and labeling the following items:
 - a. Circulation
 - b. Parking
 - c. Paving
 - d. Drainage
 - e. Grading
 - f. Traffic Control
 - g. Sidewalks
 - h. Water
 - i. Sewer
 - j. Other required Public Facilities pursuant to proposed use

D. All of the following engineering items must be satisfied prior to site plan approval by the Planning and Zoning Board.

1. Improvement Bond:

Prior to the approval of the site plan, the Developer shall submit to the Engineer, the Improvement Bond in the amount of 100% of the cost of the improvements such as paving, drainage, water, sewer, lakes excavation, pavement marking, traffic and road signs, street lights, sidewalks and the like. The bond shall be accompanied by the estimated costs of improvements certified by a registered professional engineer.

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

After acceptance of the improvements by the City's Engineering Division the Improvement bond shall be reduced by 95% for a maintenance bond for 1 year after acceptance.

2. Street Lighting:

Prior to approval of the site plan, the Developer shall pay to the City \$1,000 per pole for street lighting on all public roads, poles being a maximum of 180 feet apart. Developer shall provide a plan to be approved by Florida Power and Light Company for the lighting of private roads and parking areas within the development. Lighting shall comply with City of Lauderdale Code of Ordinances.

3. Street Addresses:

The Developer shall provide all street addresses prior to the approval of the site plan. The address plan shall be approved by the Community Development Department Engineering Division-

4. Impact Fees:

City recreation, water, sewer, stormwater and road/intersection impact fees shall be paid or a binding letter of credit or other device acceptable to the City shall be provided.

1.02 ENGINEERING PERMITTING PROCEDURES

Once a site plan is approved by the City of Lauderdale, no development may occur without all appropriate development permits. This document sets minimum permitting criteria to assist developers, contractors and the general public in obtaining an engineering permit. Consult with the City Engineer prior to submittal to determine if additional information will be required.

The services of a consulting engineer are usually necessary to the applicant during permitting process.

A. City Engineering Plan Review Requirements:

1. Submit three (3) complete sets of engineering drawings (including water, sewer, paving, drainage, signalization, geometrics, photometrics, site survey) signed and legibly sealed by an Engineer registered in the State of Florida. Original signature must be on the seal. All drawings are to be submitted on 11"x17" or 24" x 36"-sheets (3 folded sets of prints required). Computer files

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

~~shall be provided on 3 1/2" floppy disks in AutoCADD Release 14 format or latest version.~~ Electronic files (PDFs) shall be submitted for all submissions. Horizontal scale must be between 1"= 20' and 1"= 60'; vertical scale must be between 1"= 2' and 1"= 6'.

____ 2. Submit drainage calculations which are consistent with the approved site plan. A twenty-five year ~~one~~three-day design storm event shall be used for all development discharge, a five year one-day storm event shall be used for private/public roads and a one hundred year three-day storm event shall be used for building finished floor elevations.

____ 3. Submit fire flow (ISO standard) calculations and results of available fire flows.

____ 4. Requests for revisions and additional submittals will be made within ten (10) working days from the date of receipt of submittal package by the Engineer of Record. If revisions of the drawings are needed, resubmit three (3) sets of the revised engineering plans signed and sealed by the Engineer of Record.

____ 5. Submit certified cost estimates which include quantity take-offs and unit prices signed and legibly sealed by the Engineer of Record. Original signature must be on the seal. Increase bond amount if inadequate.

____ 6. Development Review Committee (DRC) review and approval.

____ 7. Planning and Zoning Board review and approval.

____ 8. City Commission review and approval.

~~-----~~9. Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan.

B. Other City Permits and Approvals Required Prior to Release of Engineering Permit as appropriate.

____ 1. Tree Removal Permit.

____ 2. Verification and copy of current valid contractor's license.

____ 3. Verification and copy of current valid occupational license.

____ 4. Verification and copy of current and valid liability insurance policy.

____ 5. Three (3) sets of shop drawings which have been approved by the Engineer of Record.

C. Potential Outside Agency Permits and Approvals Required Prior to Release of Engineering Permit:

____ 1. Broward County Department of ~~Natural Resource Protection~~ Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department (DNRP) approval for drainage, soil/water remediation and sanitary sewer collection and transmission.

____ 2. Broward County Health Department approval for water distribution.

____ 3. South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) for drainage, dewatering and irrigation.

____ 4. Florida Department of Transportation (if project affects State roads).

____ 5. Florida Department of Environmental Protection for dredge and fill permit.

____ 6. Broward County Engineering (if project affects County infrastructure).

____ 7. Broward County Traffic Engineering for traffic engineering permit.

____ 8. Broward County Plat Office for final plat (provide the City with final plat approval and a mylar copy of the plat).

____ 9. Broward County Planning for County traffic planning issues.

____ 10. City of Lauderhill Building Department for building construction issues.

____ 11. ~~BellSouth for telephone service~~ Local Communications service provider.

____ 12. Florida Power and Light Company for electricity.

____ 13. ~~Media One for cable T.V.~~ Florida Department of Environmental Protection Agency NPDES permit (sites larger than 1 acre).

-----14. Waste Management

D. Fees: Provide the City with engineering permit fees. The engineering fees are calculated as provided for in Section 2.

E. Utilities Construction Plan Requisites:

1. All drawings are to be submitted on 11"x17" or 24" x 36" sheets (3 folded sets of prints required). Computer files shall be provided on 3 1/2" floppy disks in AutoCADD Release 14 format or latest version. Electronic files (PDFs) shall be submitted for all submissions. CAD files shall be included for all final submissions.
2. A location map shall be included on the drawing.
3. Each sheet shall bear a legible seal and original signature of the Design Engineer and include a title block, north arrow, Engineer's registration number, scale, date, references as to source of design information and notes.
4. Horizontal scale shall be between 1"= 20' and 1"= 60'; vertical scale to be between 1"= 2' and 1"= 6'. Regardless of the scale, an overall layout of the proposed project shall be included on one sheet of the plans submitted, indicating all phases of construction, existing utilities and proposed utilities. Where there is more than one sheet of drawings, a sheet index diagram is required.
5. All rights-of-way and easements shall be clearly defined on design and as-built drawings. The document setting forth the easements shall be referenced (e.g. by plat or otherwise).
6. Size and type of material for all water and sewer mains and service lines shall be shown. Size and type of valves and other appurtenances to the systems shall be clearly indicated on design and as-built drawings.
7. The exact location and size of all mains are to be shown within the right-of-way or within an easement. All service line locations and sizes shall be indicated on plans. Distances from right-of-way lines, property lines and from physical features to the water and sewer mains are required on all drawings.
8. Water distribution systems shall be designed so as to provide a continuous looped system with two (2) independent sources of water during all phases of construction.
9. All line deflection points shall be indicated (horizontal and vertical) on the plans. All water mains shall cross over drainage lines.
10. Profiles are required for gravity sewer mains and they are to have the following information: invert elevation; rim elevation; slopes and profile grade (center line or base line); continuous station measurements; continuous numbering of manholes; service laterals; other conflict features such as drainage pipes, etc.;

kind of material, as PVC or DIP, etc. This information shall also appear on site plan. Manholes shall be installed away from ~~parking areas~~wheel paths of the vehicles.

11. Off-set dimensions and detail drawings are required for all appendages, adjunct or auxiliaries from the main, full blown sketches are required for all areas where the details cannot readily be seen.

12. Lift Stations to be owned and operated by the City of Lauderdale, shall be submersible lift stations, manufactured by ~~Smith & Loveless, Inc.~~Utility Department approved vendor.~~or equivalent to be approved by the Utilities Superintendent. If 15 horsepower or less, wet well stations may be approved on a case by case basis.~~ Lift station drawings and specifications shall include the following:

- a. Plan, profile, detail and electrical schematics
- b. Flow calculations; -description of collection area
- c. Pressure head calculations
- d. Pump performance curves indicating efficiencies and horsepower and impeller size
- e. Model numbers and ratings shall be shown for all pumps and meters.
- f. Site Plan of the station with full measurements given and properly tied to property lines. Site Plan shall include fencing, vehicle double swing gate, pedestrian gate, control panel, water service, driveways, emergency pump-out connection, generator receptacle, lightning protection, SCADA system, etc. Site plan shall be at a scale of 1"= 10'.
- g. All of the lift station area within fenced limits shall be paved.
- h. Pressure gages shall be placed on the discharge force main.

i. SCADA Controls

13. Public and private roadways shall be labeled; the names and/or numbers of the roadways, streets, avenues, etc. are to be clearly indicated on the plans. If the property is inside a block, then the side streets are to be shown with the names written and distances from the subject property to the side streets are to be written. Indicate lot and block numbers, if applicable.

14. The perimeter boundary lines of property to be serviced are to be clearly shown.

15. The outline of buildings to be serviced are to be shown.

16. Bench mark positions and their vertical values are to be shown.

17. Adjoining lots and block numbers and owners are to be shown. Reference as to plat is to be written, Legal description of the property is to be written and indicated on the drawings. The street or mailing address is to be shown on the design drawing and on the as-built drawing.

18. Utilities shall be located within public rights-of-way or easements as indicated in Section 21-46 of the City of Lauderdale Code of Ordinances and shall be shown on all as-built drawings.

19. Location of water meters and their sizes with service line sizes are to be shown on the design plans and as-builts. Meters are to be installed in green areas and in non-traffic areas as approved by the Utilities [SuperintendentDepartment](#). Developer shall furnish to the City, at no expense to the City, a supply of replacement meter heads for each size of meter 3-inch or larger that has been installed. For each size, the number to be furnished shall be equal to ten percent of the number installed, with at least one per size and all numbers greater than one rounded to the nearest whole numbers. All meters shall be manufactured by Neptune Water Meter Company, or approved equal. [Proposed meters be equipped with or easily converted to include automatic meter reading technology.](#)

20. Easement descriptions are to be written clearly with a point of beginning and a point of termination. Easements shall be shown on the Record Drawings. The plans shall reflect the description and shall carry additional information to facilitate construction of the worded description. Street corners are to be shown and the description shall relate the property being described to the streets. The scale shall be such to enable the direction of lines to be clearly observed. Where warranted, the plan is to be on more than one sheet with proper match lines shown for each street. The City reserves the right to approve the description and plans (Process for acceptance of easement, LDR Art. ~~III, 4.19(B)~~; [IV Sec. 6.19.](#)

21. All pavement or parking areas shall be shown and referenced; all final planned elevations shall be established.

22. At the completion of the construction of the water and sewer systems and prior to a final inspection, Record Drawings are to be drawn and submitted to the Utilities Department for review. All easements are to be clearly shown, all

buildings to be serviced are to be shown with their street addresses, postal addresses, etc., written thereon. Record Drawings are to have all the design plan information plus any changes made during construction. Record Drawings are to represent what was constructed, and must be submitted as per Section 4.06 B (7) of these standards.

23. Apart from the showing of all meters, their sizes, locations etc. on the plan sheet, a summary note is to be written on the front sheet stating:

1. The number and size of water meters
2. The calculation for capacity and the ERC/s
3. The use for the building; i.e., commercial, stores, factory, etc.

24. The City has the authority to approve all drawings (preliminary design, final designs, preliminary and final Record Drawings), as to technical representations, engineering consideration/designs, draftsmanship, clarity, scale, precision, confusion, etc., which drawings shall at all times be in conformity with City of Lauderhill minimum specifications and practices.

25. Drawings are reviewed ONLY for general compliance with City requirements. The Design Engineer shall be completely responsible for the Engineering design, technical competency and accuracy. The plans are approved with the condition that they shall conform to all City Ordinances, codes, standards and requirements. In case of conflict, the City Code of Ordinances shall supersede the plans. It shall be the responsibility of the Engineer of Record to have the plans approved by all other applicable federal, state, county or local agencies.

26. Plumbing Inspectors/Fire Department approval does not constitute approval of water and sewer construction drawings.

F. Paving and Drainage Plans Review

Provide three (3) sets, signed and sealed, showing the following information:

1. Paving and drainage construction plans
2. Paving and drainage details
3. Paving and drainage specifications
4. Pavement markings and signage plans
5. Proposed off-site improvements plans
6. Elevations of ambient ground along the perimeter of this parcel
7. As-built information of existing roads, drainage, sidewalks, electric poles, and other facilities
8. Existing and/or proposed lake and canal locations

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

9. Recorded and proposed easements and rights-of-way
10. [Drainage Calculations](#)
11. [Flood Plain Elevation in NAVD.](#)

1.03 STREET ADDRESSES

The owner/developer shall be responsible to prepare street address plan using the following guidelines:

- A. Drawings shall be of regular size (24" x 36") with all lot, block, unit, building and road numbers and legal description, zip code and location of the development shown clearly.
- B. For multi-story buildings, all units on the first floor shall commence with number 101 and all units on subsequent floors shall commence with the number of the floor as 201, 301 and the like.
- C. Odd numbers shall be assigned to units on the north and east sides of the road and even number shall be assigned to units on the south and west sides of the road.
- D. The addresses shall be reviewed and approved by the [Community Development Department Planning and Zoning Division](#) of the City of Lauderhill and the Engineering Division. Their signatures and stamps must appear on the address [mylar](#) [electronic copy \(PDF\)](#).
- E. ~~The original mylar shall be filed with the Engineering Division.~~

~~EE~~ One copy of the approved address plan shall be submitted to the following agencies:

CITY OF LAUDERHILL
5581 W. Oakland Park Blvd.
Lauderhill, FL 33313

[Community Development Department Planning and Zoning Division](#) (3 copies)

Engineering Division (1 copy)
Fire Department
(5 copies)

BellSouth, 8601 West Sunrise Boulevard, Plantation, FL 33322
Florida Power & Light Co., Wingate Service Center, 3020 NW 19th Street
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311
U.S. Post Office, SFMPC/Inverrary Branch, 6240 West Oakland Park Blvd.,

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Commented [MC1]: THIS ADDRESS IS STILL CURRENT

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Font: Highlight

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Font: Highlight

Lauderhill, FL 33319
U.S. Post Office, Tamarac Branch, 7875 N.W. 57 St., Tamarac, FL
33320-9998
U.S. Post Office, Lauderhill Crossroad Annex, 5580 W. Oakland Park Blvd.,
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33313-9998
Media One, 141 NW 16th Street, Pompano Beach, FL 33060
Broward County Traffic Engineering Dept., 2300 West Commercial Blvd.,
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309-3090
SUNSHINE STATE One Call of Florida, 1-800-432-4770
911 Project Office, Attn: Ginnie Bonura, 115 South Andrews Avenue, Suite 325, Ft.
Lauderdale, FL 33301
Broward County Elections Dept., 115 South Andrews Avenue, Room 102,
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301
U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau of the Census, Regional Office,
101 Marietta St. NW # 300, Atlanta, GA 30303-2700, attn: James Holmes

Formatted: Font: Highlight

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing:
single

1.04 UTILITIES CONSTRUCTION

A. Construction drawings for all water and sewer facilities to be built by the Developer between the service connections of the individual lots and the existing City water and sewer facilities must be submitted with the applications for connection to the City's utility systems. At that time the Developer shall pay a Plan Review Fee as specified in Section 2 of these standards.

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt,
Line spacing: single

B. Submit three (3) sets of drawings (folded) and specifications for proposed additions and/or modifications to all utility systems for review and comment, accompanied by Broward County Health Department, Broward County Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department~~Department of Natural Resource Protection~~ and/or Florida Department of Environmental Protection completed application(s). All of the above to be originally signed and sealed by the Engineer of Record.

C. Drawings, specifications and applications will be reviewed by the City within ten (10) working days of submittal. The Engineer of Record will receive back ~~three (3)~~ two (2) sets of approved plans which have been signed by the Director or Utilities Engineer for appropriate action as noted. Comments may be:

1. APPROVED AS PROPOSED: *in this case, one copy of drawings bearing the Utility Division's approval stamp will be returned to the Engineer of Record (E.O.R.).*

2. APPROVED WITH PROVISIONS NOTED OR CHANGES REQUIRED: *the plans may be accepted as corrected. In this case, three copies of drawings bearing the U.D. approval stamp will be returned to the E.O.R. indicating revisions to plans.*

3. RETURNED FOR CORRECTIONS: *the U.D. will instruct the E.O.R. in writing to revise drawings as indicated prior to approval. Engineer of Record will be required to alter or change the submittal to conform with the recommended changes and resubmit same for stamped approval and then transmittal to appropriate agencies for permitting.*

4. REJECTION: *in this case, no further action will be taken by the City unless and until a resubmittal is made.*

It is the intent of the City that all submittals made to other reviewing agencies be approved by the City BEFORE presentation to those agencies.

D. The Engineer of record will be responsible for obtaining all other approvals and permits from all other appropriate agencies or City departments. Drawings and applications approved by the City and reviewing agencies and returned to the Developer's Engineer of Record will then be submitted to the City's Engineer for permit to construct.

E. To construct a utility expansion will require the following in addition to approved plans and applications:

1. Utilities Construction Permit with relevant documentation
2. Compliance with all other City Ordinances

F. The City will provide to all applicants:

1. 1. ~~1.~~ Normal plan review (first submittal)

2. Dry run (if required) Fees per City Building Division

32. ~~32.~~ Re-submittal plan review

Normal plan review costs are defined to be all costs associated with: pre-submittal meeting with the City's staff and the Engineer; the first review of the final plans submitted with the application; the preparation of a letter and/or revised drawings to the Developer itemizing any required plan modifications identified in the first

review; and the inspection of a first resubmittal to verify that the previously identified modifications have been made.

Abnormal review costs are defined to be any and all review costs that are incurred by the City subsequent to a determination that the first resubmittal has not complied with all requirements identified during the initial plan review. If the City incurs any abnormal plan review costs, the Developer shall be required to pay an additional plan review charge. Said additional charge shall be due and payable at the time a final set of construction plans is approved, prior to the issuance of any permits.

G. Upon completion of a satisfactory final inspection, results will be certified by the City to the several regulating agencies for their use in granting final use permits, according to their requirements.

H. At the City's discretion, acceptance of completed systems will be required.

1.05 INSPECTION SERVICES GUIDELINES

The following requirements are to be followed by all Engineers of Record providing inspection services [for private developments](#).

A. Personnel:

Inspector - ~~minimum 10 hours/week on field at the job site.~~ Must have at least two years of ~~pre-engineering college education related engineering experience~~, or be a certified engineering inspector, and must have 3 years of directly related inspection experience.

Project Manager - ~~minimum one visit per week to the job site.~~ Must have a degree in engineering and must have minimum of 3 years of directly related experience.

Engineer - must be registered Professional Engineer in the State of Florida. Must have complete knowledge and control over the project.

B. Reports:

Daily inspection reports shall be prepared by the inspector ~~and shall be checked by the Project Managersubmitted to the Engineering Division by the Engineer of Record~~. This report shall reflect the work performed, the work inspected/not inspected, the work approved/not approved, the problems with material, equipment, labor, workmanship, weather, etc., the deviations from approved plans,

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

specifications and schedules, change order recommendations, field decisions, lab and field test reports/results, etc. and any questions for the Engineer or the City. The report shall be signed by the Inspector, and the Project Manager, and shall be forwarded to the ~~Utilities Department, c/o the Utilities Engineer~~Engineering Division. The Utilities Department reserves the right to stop construction activity if this documentation is not provided.

C. Meetings (if necessary):

There shall be weekly ~~(or by weekly)~~ progress meetings at the ~~DEES Administration Office~~Engineering Divisions Offices, not to exceed one hour duration. This meeting shall be attended by the Project Manager or Inspector, the Contractor and the City Inspector. The minutes of these meetings shall be documented by the inspector and sent to the City. The meetings for all private development shall be held at the jobsite. The meetings for all public developments shall be held at City Facilities.

D. Responsibilities:

The Engineer of Record shall be completely responsible to enforce the approved plans, specifications schedules, and all applicable codes and regulations, and to make sure that all necessary permits and approvals have been obtained for all agencies.

1.06 UTILITY INSPECTIONS: The following inspections shall be performed on utility installations by the public and private sectors.

A. WATER DISTRIBUTION

1. Connection to Existing Systems
2. Filling and Flushing
3. Hydrostatic Pressure Testing
4. Chlorination/Bacteriological Sampling
5. Visual Inspection of all Mechanically Restrained Joints
6. Visual Inspection of Pipe Bedding.

B. SEWER COLLECTION

1. Structures (prior to installation)
2. Connection to Existing Systems
3. Lamping
4. Structure Application of Protective Coatings (external and internal)
5. Leakage/Infiltration Testing

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

6. [Visual Inspection of Pipe Bedding.](#)

C. SEWER TRANSMISSION

1. Connection to Existing Systems
2. Flushing
3. Hydrostatic Pressure Testing
4. Pump Station Start-up
5. [Visual Inspection of all Mechanically Restrained Joints](#)
6. [Visual Inspection of Pipe Bedding.](#)

D. REPORTS/DOCUMENTS REQUIRED

1. Inspection Reports as Outlined in Section IV: Inspection Services Guidelines
2. Hydrostatic Pressure Testing Report
3. Satisfactory Bacteriological Sampling Reports
4. Sewer Lamping Report
5. [Leakage/Infiltration Testing Report](#)
6. HRS Clearance Letter
7. DEP Certification of Completion Form
8. D.N.R.P. Approval Letter
9. Sanitary Sewer Televised Inspection Report and Tapes
10. Letter of Certification by Engineer of Record.
11. [Fire Flow Test Results](#)

E. NOTIFICATION

Please call 954-730-~~4224~~-[3060](#) for all Inspections/Appointments 24 hours in advance. Inspections will not be conducted on the same day requested. Forward all documentation to the [DEES Engineering/GIS Department, 2000 City Hall Drive, Lauderhill, FL 33313-5581 W. Oakland Park Blvd., Lauderhill, Florida 333313](#)

F. In the event a test or inspection fails, a required party is not present or the appointment requester fails to cancel within one (1) hour of the scheduled inspection time, the requesting party will be charged a minimum fee as per Section 2 of these standards to cover up to one (1) hour of the inspector's time.

G. Contractor is responsible for the cost of inspections for any construction activities occurring outside normal working hours (~~7:30~~[8:00](#)am to [5:00](#)pm Monday

through ~~Friday~~Thursday), Fridays, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays are not considered normal working days. Arrangements for inspections outside normal working hours must be made a minimum of FIVE days in advance of construction activity. Additional inspections or documentation may be required as determined by the DEESEngineering Division.

1.07 ENGINEERING INSPECTIONS: The following inspections shall be performed on engineering permits.

A. PAVING:

1. Demucking and filling
2. Stabilized subgrade
3. Limerock basecourses
4. Asphalt paving
5. Final inspection at the time of Certificate of Occupancy
6. Reports Needed:
 - a. density test reports (subgrade and basecourse)
 - b. LBR test reports (subgrade and basecourse)
 - c. calcium carbonate reports (basecourse)
 - d. certification of type of asphalt
 - e. inspection reports for all underground utility lines such as: water, sewer, drainage, gas, power, phone, TV, etc.
 - f. certificate that the entire pavement area has been completely demucked and backfilled properly with suitable material.

B. DRAINAGE:

All joints, catch basin/manhole connections and drainfields to be inspected prior to backfill. Final inspection prior to Certificate of Occupancy.

C. SIDEWALKS:

Alignment, depth and pedestrian ramp details, as indicated in the City code of ordinances, to be inspected prior to concrete pouring. Final inspection prior to Certificate of Occupancy.

D. TRAFFIC SIGNS, ROAD SIGNS & PAVEMENT MARKINGS:

To be inspected at final inspection prior to Certificate of Occupancy.

E. NOTIFICATION:

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Please call (954)730-~~4224~~3060 for all inspections 24 hours in advance. Forward all reports to the [Engineering/GIS Department, 5581 W. Oakland Park Blvd., Lauderhill, Florida 333313](#)
~~DEES, Lauderhill City Hall, 2000 City Hall Drive, Lauderhill, FL 33313.~~

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

1.08 FINAL ENGINEERING INSPECTION CHECKLIST

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

This document sets minimum City inspection criteria. Additional criteria may be required by the City.

The Contractor shall use this checklist to perform a preliminary inspection prior to scheduling the final engineering inspection with the City. It is the Contractor's responsibility to provide personnel to perform the manual aspects of the inspection (i.e., opening manhole lids, turning gate valves, operating fire hydrants, etc.).

A. Water Distribution System:

____ 1. All features shall be installed according to the approved plans.

____ 2. Fire Hydrants:

- ____ a. Height (~~18" to 24"~~ +/- 2" from finished grade to nozzle).
- ____ b. Direction (5-1/4" nozzle must face accessway).
- ____ c. Distance (4' minimum to 7' maximum from curb).
- ____ d. Fire hydrant must be plumb.
- ____ e. Paint (OSHA reflective traffic yellow bruning 1235 or equal).
- ____ f. Reflective pavement markers (place two (2) in the center of the adjacent drive lane).
- ____ g. Fire hydrant and fire hydrant gate valve shall be operational.

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

____ 3. Gate Valves:

- ____ a. Set to grade.
- ____ b. Concrete collar per City specifications.
- ____ c. Gate valves shall be operational.
- ____ d. Paint (paint valve box lid blue).

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

_____e. Reflective pavement markers (place one (1) in the center of the adjacent drive lane).

B. Sewage Collection & Transmission System:

_____1. All features shall be installed according to the approved plans.

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

_____2. Collection System:

- _____a. Manhole rims shall be visible.
- _____b. Manhole rims shall be set to grade.
- _____c. Manhole rims shall be attached securely.
- _____d. Manhole rims shall be free of asphalt.
- _____e. Manhole interiors shall be painted with two coats

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

of approved paint.

- _____f. Manhole interiors shall be free of infiltration.
- _____g. Detection markers shall be placed at all stub-outs.
- _____h. Any stub-out not tied into a building shall have a 6"x6"x5' wooden stake as a marker and shall have the top 12" painted green.
- _____i. All pipes shall be free of leaks and infiltration.
- _____j. Manholes located in grass areas shall have a concrete collar.

_____k. Clean outs shall be set to grade.

_____l. Rain guards installed in all manholes.

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

_____3. Force Main Transmission System:

_____a. Force main gate valves shall have concrete collars set to grade and painted green.

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

_____b. Place green reflective pavement markers in the center of the adjacent drive lane.

_____c. Air release valves and manholes shall be free of any defects.

_____d. The lift station shall be in full operational condition.

_____e. Lift station shall be operational.

_____f. Lift station site shall be accessible by truck via paved driveway.

_____g. All lift station fixtures shall be operational.

_____h. Lift station site shall be fenced and landscaped.

C. Drainage System and Grading:

_____1. All features shall be installed according to the approved plans.

- ____ 2. Drainage structures, sumps, and pipes shall be free of debris.
- ____ 3. Catch basins outside paved areas shall have a concrete apron.
- ____ 4. Outfalls shall be complete and clear of debris.
- ____ 5. Inlets shall be free of filter fabric.
- ____ 6. Lake, canal, or ditch banks shall be to grade and slope as per approved plans.
- ____ 7. Erosion protection measures shall be in effect.
- ____ 8. Pollution retardant device shall be in place as per approved plans.
- ____ 9. Flow lines of swales shall be 6" below edge of pavement
- ____ 10. Grates shall be secure.
- ____ 11. Pollution baffles shall be in place as required.
- ____ 12. Head walls shall be in place.

D. Pavement:

- ____ 1. All features shall be installed according to the approved plans.
- ____ 2. Alignments and cross-sections of all paved areas shall conform to the approved plans.
- ____ 3. Pavement:
 - ____ a. Pavement shall be clean.
 - ____ b. Pavement shall have second lift placed.
 - ____ c. Pavement shall be free of potholes, cracks, and divots.
 - ____ d. Crown and grade of roadway shall conform to approved plans.
 - ____ e. Pavement markings and signage shall conform to the approved plans.
 - ____ f. Curbs shall be free of cracks and shall otherwise conform to the approved plans.

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

- _____g. Expansion joints shall conform to approved plans.
- _____h. Wheelchair ramps shall conform to approved plans.
- _____i. Parking spaces shall conform to approved plans.

E. Miscellaneous:

- _____1. Work of other utilities shall be complete.
- _____2. Site lighting and street lighting shall be operational.
- _____3. Street signs and traffic signs shall be in place.
- _____4. Permanent reference monuments (PRM's) with elevations shall be in place.
- _____5. All existing facilities disturbed during construction shall be restored.
- _____6. Site Wall (Screening and Retaining walls) completed and finished.

1.09 BOND RELEASE PROCEDURES

This document sets minimum City criteria for performance bond and maintenance release procedures. Additional criteria may be required by the City.

A. For Performance Bond Release:

The Developer/Owner must provide the City Engineer with the following, 30 days before the performance bond release inspection:

- _____1. One (1) complete set of acceptable ~~mylar~~ "as-built" drawings for water, sewer, paving, drainage, and geometric controls. In electronic format (PDF and CAD)
- _____2. Five (5) complete sets of acceptable ~~blueprint "as-built" record drawings certified by the Engineer of Record~~ drawings, two (2) of which are to be forwarded to the ~~Community Development Department~~ Planning and Zoning Division, and one (1) complete set of "as-builts" in digital format (i.e., ~~autocadd 12 or higher~~ Current AutoCAD version or transportable to a dxf format) including

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

sheets for all water, sewer, paving, drainage, details, and geometric controls, certified by the Engineer of Record.*

_____3. All utility easements, legal descriptions, and sketches, in recordable form.

_____4. A bill of sale with the actual value of all public improvements to be transferred to the City.

_____5. All release of liens for public improvements to be transferred to the City.

_____6. Completion of all items on the water distribution section of the final engineering inspection checklist.

_____7. Completion of all items on the sewer collection and transmission section of the final engineering inspection checklist.

_____8. Completion of all items on the pavement section of the final engineering inspection checklist.

_____9. Completion of all items on the drainage and grading section of the final engineering checklist.

_____10. The actual construction cost for all improvements.

Within thirty (30) working days, the City will inform the Developer in writing if the public improvements are acceptable. If the public improvements are acceptable, the Developer will submit a maintenance bond to the City. If the maintenance bond is acceptable to the City staff will release the performance bond.

B. For Maintenance Bond Release:

A letter of notification will be mailed to the Developer, approximately ninety (90) days prior to the maintenance bond expiration date, by the City. If fifty (50) percent of the certificates of occupancy have been issued for the buildings in the improved area, the City will request the Developer to arrange for reinspection for the bonded improvements.

* If "record drawings" in digital format are not provided to the City, there will be a two-hundred dollar (\$200.00) per sheet charge to the developer to reimburse the City for making the conversion.

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

_____1. Completion of all items on the water distribution section of the final engineering inspection checklist.

_____2. Completion of all items on the sewer collection and transmission section of the final engineering inspection checklist.

_____3. Completion of all items on the pavement section of the final engineering inspection checklist.

_____4. Completion of all items on the drainage and grading section of the final engineering inspection checklist.

Any defects in the water distribution, sewer collection or paving, grading and drainage, must be corrected and completed, and approved by the City twenty-one (21) days prior to the bond expiration date. Otherwise, the maintenance bond shall be extended until all deficiencies are completed and approved.

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0",
Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

SECTION 2 - ENGINEERING PERMIT FEES

2.01 ENGINEERING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

An Engineering Permit is required for any addition, removal or modification within a public right of way, private thoroughfare, ingress or egress easement, utility easement, canal right of way, stormwater easement, or as determined by the City Engineer. An Engineering Permit is required for any existing or proposed structure or altered condition on any land, public or private, which is not solely governed by the [South Florida Building Code](#). An Engineering Permit is required for any possible source, storage or conveyance of a pollutant, except when it has been determined not to be a concern. [An engineering permit is also required for any trenching, earthwork, directional boring/drilling, clearing and grubbing and any pavement construction within private or public lands.](#)

The owner or adjacent property owner responsible for maintenance may apply for an Engineering Permit and is responsible for the Engineering Permit application and associated fees. The fee for Engineering Permit application is \$25.00 plus the schedule listed under 2.02 for review, inspections.

It is the applicant's responsibility to provide and use all information, data, analysis, drawings, etc. which are needed to submit an engineering permit

application based on thorough and sound engineering information and decisions.

An Engineering Permit Application requires an Engineer, surveyor, landscape architect, to sign, date, and seal all submittals as applicable if the submittal requires professional judgment.

The City Engineer shall make the final determination when and if an Engineering Permit is required.

The City Engineer shall make decisions on permit application requirements and approvals based on engineering judgment.

The owner, the party responsible for maintenance, the contractor or alteree or the party that requisitioned them, may be responsible for the removal or modification of a condition that is not in accordance with the Engineering Standards.

2.02 SCHEDULE OF PERMIT FEES

		*Based on % of Certified Estimated Construction Price
A. Landscape/Irrigation in Right of Way		4%
B. Lift Stations		4%
C. Pavement & Drainage Systems including markings and signs		4%
D. Sewage Collection Systems		4%
E. Sidewalks, Driveways, Slabs & Curbing		4%
F. Water Distribution Systems		4%
G. Tennis, Hardball & other Recreation Site Features		4%
H. Site Lighting		
HI. Site Lighting	Demucking & Filling	24%
IJ. Demucking & Filling		24%
IK. Excavation in Public R/W	\$100/LF of pavement, or	4%
L. Water Service Line per service line (up to 2")		\$2,000
M. Water Service Line (greater than 2")		\$4,000
N. Water Meter Installation		\$100
JO. Plan Review Fee	included in 4% or \$100/hr (Min.)	
KP. Administrative Fees	Single Family \$100	225
	Multi Family/Commercial/Industrial	\$250
		\$560
LQ. Processing Fee		\$27.50

Notes:

- The City may, at its own discretion, request the developer to provide at his/her expense an independent engineer approved by the City for inspections on all the above items, thus reducing the permit fee to 2% of estimated contract price including labor and materials. Permit fees are waived for franchise utilities.

* Waived for single-family applications.

Formatted Table

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Line spacing: single

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Line spacing: single, Tab stops: 1.49", Left + Not at 0.38"

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.38", Space After: 3 pt, Line spacing: single, Tab stops: 0.38", Left + 0.63", Left + 1.49", Left + Not at 0.5" + 1"

Formatted: Centered, Line spacing: single

Formatted Table

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.38", Space After: 3 pt, Line spacing: single, Tab stops: 0.38", Left + 0.63", Left + Not at 0.5" + 1"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.38", Space After: 3 pt, Line spacing: single, Tab stops: 0.38", Left + 0.63", Left + Not at 0.5" + 1"

2. Failure to request a final inspection within ninety (90) days after work is completed, results in permit renewal fee at one hundred percent (100%) of original permit FEE plus a ~~\$100.00~~\$250.00 minimum penalty.
3. If applicant applies for renewal within ninety (90) days after expiration of a permit, the permit may be renewed at one-half (½) of the original fee with a maximum charge of \$1,000.00 after review.
4. On October 1st of each year, the fees referred to above shall be increased in accordance with the Consumer Price Index for urban consumers in the United States published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics for the twelve (12) months ending April of each year unless otherwise instructed by the City Commission. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any fees quoted as a percentage of either total estimated construction cost or original fee (for reinspections) shall remain unchanged until changed by the City Commission. These adjustments will be effective on the following October 1st.
5. Fees above includes three inspections, two plan reviews, issuance of permits and permit closeout documentation.
6. There shall be a \$75 re-inspection fee for all failed inspections.
7. All permits will expire within 90 days of issuance without first inspections request. All permits will expire after 90 days between inspections.
8. All permits and construction cost estimates for for proposed work five feet outside of any building.

SECTION 3 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.01 DEFINITIONS

Definitions for the purpose of this section:

Alley: A minor public right-of-way of not more than twenty (20) feet in width providing secondary vehicular access to the side or rear of properties otherwise abutting a street.

Bicycle and pedestrian ways: Means any road, path or way which is open to bicycle travel and traffic afoot and from which motor vehicles are excluded.

Building: Any structure, either portable or fixed, having a roof, and used or built for the shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, chattels, or property of any kind.

City: The City of Lauderhill, Florida.

Code: Shall include both the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lauderhill and the Land Development Regulations thereof.

Collector: A street which carries traffic from minor streets to the major arterial streets.

Commercial uses: Activities within land areas which are predominantly connected with professional services, office use sales and distribution of products and personal services.

County: Broward County, Florida.

Density or gross density: The total number of dwelling units divided by the total site area less public right-of-way.

Drainage facilities: A system of man-made structures designed to collect, convey, hold divert or discharge stormwater.

Driveway: Space located on a lot, built for access to a garage, off-street parking or vehicle loading space.

Easement: Any strip of land created by a subdivider for public or private utilities, drainage, sanitation, or other specified uses having limitations, the title to which shall remain in the name of the property owner, subject to the right of use designated in the reservation of the servitude.

Fire Lane: A fire rescue emergency access road, designated as such in accordance with the ~~South~~ Florida Building Code, having a minimum inside turning radius of forty (40) feet with a twelve (12) foot clear sweep. Overhead clearances of eleven (11) feet shall always be provided for fire lanes designed for Fire Department use.

Local street: An arterial.

Lot: A designated parcel, tract or area of land established by plat subdivision or as otherwise permitted by law. Two or more contiguous lots in common ownership may be treated as one lot, provided that the combined lots are used as a single lot. Once treated in this fashion, the combined lots may not be later subdivided or treated as separate lots.

Lot depth: The mean horizontal distance between the front and rear lines of a lot.

Lot frontage: The uninterrupted length of the front lot line.

Lot line, front: The property line dividing a lot from a single street right-of-way.

Lot line, rear: The lot line most nearly opposite from the front lot line.

Lot line, side: Any lot line which is not a front or rear lot line.

Lot width: The horizontal distance between the side lot lines at the front setback line, or at the front lot line where no front setback is required.

Parking: The temporary, transient storage of private passenger automobiles used for personal transportation, while their operators are engaged in other activities. It shall not include storage of new or used cars for sale, service, rental or any other purpose other than specified above.

Parking space: A space at least nine (9) feet in width and eighteen (18) feet in length with at least eighteen (18) feet of back-up and maneuvering area directly behind the space, used exclusively as a parking stall for one vehicle.

Parking space, off-street: A clear area, not located in a public street or alley, maintained exclusively for parking of one (1) standard passenger vehicle, and usable without moving another vehicle. Must conform with requirements of parking space.

Right-of-way: Land dedicated, deeded, used, or to be used for a street, alley, walkway, boulevard, drainage facility, access or ingress and egress, or other purpose by the public, certain designated individuals, or governing bodies.

Sanitary sewer facilities: Structures or systems designed for the collection, transmission, treatment, or disposal of sewage and includes trunk mains, interceptors, treatment plants and disposal systems.

Setback: The minimum distance between the street right-of-way outer line closest to the building and the front line of the building or any projection thereof, excluding projections specifically permitted or, the minimum distance between the side and rear property lines and the applicable side and rear building lines or any projection thereof, excluding projections specifically permitted.

Sign: Any permanent or temporary structure, or devise, letter, work, model, banner, pennant, insignia, or trade flag which is visible from any public street, alley, waterway or public place. Sign shall not be construed to include any flag, notice, badge, or insignia or any government or governmental agency, or any legal notice posted by and under governmental authority.

~~**Speed Bump:** A raised section of a paved surface or roadway designed to interfere with and deter speeding traffic.~~

Speed Hump: Similar to a speed bump except that it is 2.53 inches in height and is 12 feet long.

Street: A public thoroughfare greater than twenty-four (24) feet in width which affords principal means of access to abutting property, including the distance between applicable right-of-way lines. Street shall include land dedicated to or condemned for use as a public thoroughfare for public travel, whether or not utilized, but shall not include an alley as defined herein.

Street, arterial: A street used primarily for fast and heavy traffic traveling considerable distances. All arterials in Broward county are designated on the Broward County Trafficways Plan.

Street, expressway: A street or highway intended for fast and heavy traffic traveling considerable distances on which points of ingress and egress are limited and crossings are separated, and completed according to Broward County Engineering Standards.

Street, marginal access: A minor street parallel to and adjacent to arterial streets, highways or expressways, and which provides access to abutting

property and protection from through traffic, and completed according to Broward County engineering standards.

Street, minor: A street used primarily for access to abutting properties, and completed according to Broward County engineering standards.

Structure: Anything constructed, assembled or erected, installed or portable, the use of which requires a location on a parcel of land. It includes a movable structure while it is located on land and which can be used for housing, business, commercial, industrial, recreational or office purposes, either temporarily or permanently. "Structure" also includes fences, billboards, swimming pools, poles, pipelines, transmission lines, tracks, and advertising signs and tennis courts, and the like.

Swale: That area owned by another which separates private property and waterway, streets, and other common improved areas. It may also be used as a ground collector of water for a designed drainage system. The center of the swale is halfway between the edge of the sidewalk and the edge of the pavement, and the size of the swale depends on the width of the road right-of-way when the swale separates private property and streets.

Trafficway: Any one of the expressways, principal arterials, minor arterials or collector streets shown on the Broward County Trafficways Plan, promulgated by the Broward County Planning Council pursuant to Chapter 59-1154, Laws of Florida, as amended, and the Broward County Charter, on the Lauderhill Trafficway Plan.

Traffic Circle: A road junction at which traffic moves in one direction around a central island.

Utility: Includes any public or private utility, such as, but not limited to, storm drainage, sanitary sewers, electric power, water service, gas service, or telephone line, whether underground or overhead.

Walkway: A right-of-way intended primarily for pedestrians, excluding self-propelled vehicles.

Waterway: A stream, canal or body of water, dedicated to public use, publicly owned, or used and available for public travel by boats, not including privately-owned bodies of water or drainage ditches.

3.02 ROADS

A. Design Standards

1. Streets and alleys

- a. *Conformity to trafficway plan.* The location, direction and width of all streets, roads and highways shall conform to the official trafficways plan where such a plan is in existence and is applicable.
- b. *Relation to existing street system.* The arrangement of streets in new or replatted subdivisions shall make provisions for proper extension of existing dedicated streets in existing subdivisions, where such extension is appropriate.
- c. *Provisions for platting adjoining unplatted areas.* The arrangement of streets in new or replatted subdivisions shall be such so as to facilitate and coordinate with the desirable future platting of adjoining unplatted property of a similar character, and provide for local circulation and convenient access to neighborhood facilities.
- d. *Protection from through traffic.* Minor and collector residential street shall be laid out and arranged so as to discourage their use by through traffic. Residential streets shall not connect with industrial areas.
- e. *Arterial street frontage.* Where a residential subdivision or residential property abuts an existing or proposed arterial street, the Board may require marginal access streets, reverse frontage with screen planting contained in a nonaccess reservation along the rear property line, deep lots with or without rear service alleys, or such other treatment as may be necessary for adequate protection of residential properties and to assure separation of through and local traffic.
- f. *Plats adjacent to railroad or expressway right-of-way.* Where a subdivision borders on or contains a right-of-way for a railroad, expressway, drainage canal or waterway, the Board may require a street approximately parallel to

and on each side of such right-of-way at a distance suitable for the appropriate use of the intervening land. Such distances shall also be determined with due regard for requirements of approach grades for future grade separations.

- g. *Reserve strips.* Reserve strips controlling access to streets shall be prohibited except where their control is definitely placed in the City under conditions approved by the Board.
- h. *Private streets.* There shall be no private streets platted in any subdivision. Every subdivided lot or property shall be served from a publicly dedicated street. This requirement may be waived by the Commission in special situations where the Commission finds public safety, convenience, and welfare can be adequately served. All private streets shall be required to meet all requirements for public streets.
- i. *Half streets.* New half or partial streets shall not be permitted except where essential to reasonable subdivision of a tract in conformance with these regulations or where satisfactory assurance for dedication of the remaining part of the street is provided. Wherever a tract to be subdivided borders on an existing half or partial street, the other part of the street shall be dedicated within such tract.
- j. *Dead end streets.* Dead end streets shall be prohibited, except where appropriate as stub to permit future street extension into adjoining unsubdivided tracts, or when designed as a cul-de-sac.
- k. *Cul-de-sac streets.*
 - 1) Cul-de-sacs, permanently designed as such, shall not exceed four hundred (400) feet in length, except on finger islands.
 - 2) Cul-de-sacs shall be provided at the closed end with a circular dedicated area not less than one

hundred (100) feet in diameter for turnaround purposes.

l. *Street rights-of-way.*

- 1) Unless otherwise indicated or required by the trafficways plan, for sufficient reasons shown that exceptions should be made in specific cases, street rights-of-way shall not be less than the following:

<i>Street Type</i>	<i>R/W (feet)</i>
Major arterial thoroughfare or non-through section line road.	106
Secondary arterial thoroughfare or non-through section line road	80
Collector	60
Minor, for apartments, business, industrial	50
Minor for one and two-family dwellings	50
Marginal access	50

- 2) Additional right-of-way width may be required to promote public safety and convenience, or to assure adequate access, circulation and parking in high density residential areas, commercial areas, and industrial areas.
- 3) Less right-of-way may be permitted in cases where there is a quantifiable public benefit and all the criteria for public safety and sanitation vehicles can be met with the approval of the City.

m. *Alleys.*

- 1) Alleys shall be provided to serve multiple dwelling, business, commercial, and industrial areas, except that the Board may waive this requirement where other definite provision is made for service access, off-street loading, unloading and adequate parking, for the uses permissible on the property involved.

- 2) The width of any alley shall be not more than twenty (20) feet. Alleys shall be design to keep runoff within the alley right-of-way.
- 3) Changes in alignment or alleys must provide a centerline radius of at least forty (40) feet.
- 4) Dead-end alleys shall be avoided where possible, but if unavoidable, shall be provided with adequate turnaround facilities for service trucks at the dead-end, with a minimum external diameter of one hundred (100) feet, or as determined to be adequate by the Board.

n. *Street alignment.*

- 1) Curved linear streets are recommended for residential minor and collector streets in order to discourage excessive vehicular speeds and to provide attractive vistas.
- 2) Whenever a street changes direction, or connecting street lines deflect from each other by more than ten (10) degrees, there shall be a horizontal curve.
- 3) To ensure adequate sight distance, minimum centerline radii for horizontal curves shall be in accordance with the design speed of roadway and the minimum requirements in the Florida Greenbooks as follows:

<u>Minor streets</u>	<u>150 feet</u>
<u>Collector streets</u>	<u>300 feet</u>
<u>Secondary arterial streets and</u>	
<u>section line roads</u>	<u>500 feet</u>
<u>Major arterial thoroughfares</u>	<u>750 feet</u>
- 4) A tangent at least one hundred (100) feet long shall be provided between reverse curves on collector streets, and at least two hundred fifty (250) feet long on major and secondary thoroughfares and section line roads.

o. *Street intersections.*

- 1) Streets shall be laid out to intersect as nearly as possible at right angles. No street shall intersect another at an angle of less than sixty (60) degrees,

except at a "Y" intersection of two (2) minor streets.

- 2) Multiple intersections involving the junction of more than two (2) streets shall be prohibited except where found to be unavoidable by the Commission.
- 3) "T" intersections of minor and collector streets are to be encouraged.
- 4) As far as possible, intersections with arterial streets shall be located not less than eight hundred (800) feet apart, measured from centerline to centerline.
- 5) Streets entering opposite sides of another street shall be laid out directly opposite each other or with a minimum offset of one hundred twenty-five (125) feet between their centerlines or as required by FDOT intersection design guide.

<u>SPEED LIMIT (mph)</u>	<u>Maximum Deflection Angle Through Intersection</u>
<u>20</u>	<u>16 degrees</u>
<u>25</u>	<u>11 degrees</u>
<u>30</u>	<u>8 degrees</u>
<u>35</u>	<u>6 degrees</u>
<u>40</u>	<u>5 degrees</u>
<u>45</u>	<u>3 degrees</u>

- 6) Minimum property line radii at street intersections shall be twenty-five (25) feet for minor streets and where the angle of intersection is less than sixty (60) degrees, a greater radius may be required by the Commission.

- p. *Excessive street widths.* Streets shall not be platted to a width more than one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the minimum width specified in these regulations for the type of street involved. No street shall be platted for center island development except where such center islands may be desirable or necessary for traffic separation and safety as determined by the Board.

g. Traffic Circles: Traffic circles shall be permitted when all approach right-of-way are a minimum of 60 feet and shall be warranted by a traffic data proofing the traffic circle will have a net positive impact on traffic calming for the approach roadways.

2. Speed Humps

a. Speed humps are similar to speed bumps except they are 2.53 inches in height and are 12 feet long (and 12 ft. wide for one standard lane width). Geometric requirements for a permissible speed hump are shown in Section 5. Additionally, the following warning devices, hump spacing, and off-set requirements must be met.

- Warning Signs 120 ft. from hump
- Pavement Markings on hump
- Humps must be at least 25 ft. from any road junction
- Humps must be at least 90 ft. from any crosswalk
- Humps shall not be located in the middle of a lot line and shall generally be located near the

<u>SPEED LIMIT (mph)</u>	<u>MINIMUM SPACING (ft)</u>
<u>15</u>	<u>120</u>
<u>20</u>	<u>240</u>
25	<u>360</u> <u>400</u>

B. Circulation

1. Pavement widths and access points to peripheral streets shall be provided which adequately serve the proposed development and which are compatible and functional with circulation systems outside the development.
2. All private roadwaysprivate driveways going into public roadways shall have stop signs placed at the point of intersection of the private road with the road or right-of-way dedicated or scheduled to be dedicated to the City or the County, said signs to be erected at the expense of property owner. A fifteen-foot visual radius shall be provided at all intersections of private and public roadways.

3.03 PARKING AREAS

A. Design Standards for Parking Areas

1. Parking lots for industrial, commercial and recreational subdivisions and for residential subdivisions with multi-family units or single-family attached units shall be constructed in accordance with the following criteria:
 - a. *Parking area.* The term "Parking Area" shall include the driving lanes, parking spaces, curbing, landscaping, lighting signs, pavement markings, guardrails and drainage.
 - b. *Sketches.* The sketches entitled "Standard Parking Area Details" shall be a part of these minimum standards and shall be available in the Engineering Division for inspection.
 - c. *Pavement construction.* The parking area pavement shall be constructed of minimum twelve (12") inches compacted and stabilized subgrade (minimum 40 LBR), minimum ~~six-eight~~ (68") inches compacted limerock basecourse and minimum (1 ½ inches) compacted FDOT organic material shall be allowed under the pavement. The pavement shall have a cross slope of 2% and a longitudinal slope of 0.5 minimum for normal crown section. The pavement shall have a crown slope of 2.0% and a longitudinal slope of 1.0% minimum for inverted crown section on runs greater than 100 feet. The pavement shall have a crown slope of not less than 1.0% with an average slope of not less than 2.0% and a longitudinal slope of not less than 0.5% on runs less than 100 feet. The run is defined as the length of pavement between high and low elevations points. All centerline turning radii must be minimum 50 feet.
 - d. *Curbing.* All landscaped areas shall be provided with continuous concrete curbing around them. Either FDOT Type D or Type F curb. Extruded curbing, poured on top of the pavement shall be allowed provided that the

~~pavement extends at least three inches behind the curb, the ends of the asphaltic surface course and limerock basecourse layers behind and underneath the curb are completely wrapped around by a heavy duty moisture barrier, material and installation to be approved by the City Engineer, and the curbing is anchored to the pavement with number four steel bars at ten foot intervals. Otherwise, FDOT Type D 6"x 18" or 16"x 12" curbing shall be provided.~~

- e. *Driving lanes.* Driving lanes shall have a minimum clear width of 24 feet for two-way traffic, 15 feet for one-way traffic and 12 feet for drive-thru/drop-off traffic. When parking spaces are provided at 60 degrees angle, the one-way driving lane shall be minimum 18 feet clear. A 24 inch wide white stop bar, along with 25 feet of double yellow lines, shall be provided at the end of each driving lane.
- f. *Parking spaces.* Standard parking spaces shall be minimum nine (9) feet wide and eighteen (18) feet long. Angle parking shall be designed to provide a clear 10 feet by 20 feet rectangle for each parking space. Handicapped parking space shall be 12 feet by 20-18 feet minimum. Parking spaces for parallel parking shall not be less than nine (9) feet in width and twenty-three (23) feet in length. Continuous concrete curbing or individual six feet long concrete car stops shall be installed for each space. Provide four inches wide white lines on either side of each space identifying the limits of the space. The number of parking spaces shall conform to Sch. G Sec. 1.3 of the LDR.
- g. *Pavement markings and signs.* All pavement markings and signs shall conform to "Broward County Traffic Engineering" and "Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices" standards. All pavement markings shall be of thermoplastic material, except the four-inch white lines on either side of a parking space.
- h. *Handicapped sign requirements.* Each parking space for

Commented [MC2]: Check

Sections 316.1955 and 316.1956, as currently existing or as may be amended, and shall be posted and maintained with a permanent, six foot, above grade, unobstructed sign bearing the international symbol of accessibility and the caption "PARKING BY DISABLED PERMIT ONLY". Those signs in existence prior to May 30, 1989, which measure between four and one-half (4 ½) and six (6) feet above grade shall be deemed to be in compliance with this section.

- i. *Landscaping.* All landscaping shall conform to the requirements of Sch. J of the LDR. All landscaped areas shall be provided with automatic lawn irrigation systems.
- j. *Lighting.* The light poles shall be made of concrete, metal or fiberglass and all wires and cables shall be underground. Wooden poles and overhead lines shall not be allowed. All lighting shall comply with City of Lauderhill Code or Ordinances.
- k. *Drainage.* All drainage lines and structures shall be installed in accordance with the "Grading and Drainage Regulations and Standards", Broward County Transportation Department, Water Management Divisions, latest edition. Surface water along inverted crown shall be allowed to travel only in straight lines. Catch basins shall be provided at each change of direction. Drainage shall be designed so the storage depth shall not exceed 6 inches. Drainage from a 25 year-3 day storm event (14 inches) shall be retained on-site. The first inch of runoff shall be treated in swales.
- l. *Guardrails.* FDOT type guardrails shall be provided where the edge of the parking area pavement is closer than ~~14~~ 50 feet from the top of the bank of a lake, canal or other waterway. The guardrail shall be installed along the full length of such pavement, ~~at a minimum clear distance of four feet~~ in accordance with FDOT standards.
- m. *Enforcement.* The City's Engineering Division shall be responsible to review plans, issue construction permits,

conduct inspections and approve all parking areas in the City.

n. Commercial Drive Thru: All drive thru shall provide a minimum queuing distance for four cars or as required by a queuing analysis.

o. Guard Houses: All gated guardhouse shall provide a minimum queuing distance for four cars or as required by a queuing analysis.

B. Property Maintenance

1. Minimum standards for private parking lots.

- a. All buildings and structures for private parking shall be maintained in a secure, safe, and attractive condition. Deteriorated or used metal covering on any such existing or subsequently constructed carport structure shall be repaired or replaced so as to render same in a safe and attractive condition that is neither physically nor visually a blighting influence.
- b. The off-street parking facilities shall be identified as to purpose and as to location when not clearly evident from a street or alley. Off-street parking facilities including access aisles and driveways shall be surfaced with Florida Department of Transportation Type [S-3SP-9.5](#) asphaltic concrete course or approved equal, and maintained in a smooth, well-graded condition without any potholes, pavement deterioration, surface irregularities, and any traffic/safety hazard, provided that driveways, access aisles, and parking spaces for churches and public and private schools and churches offering academic courses may be surfaced with grass or lawn.
- c. All off-street parking facilities for the use of public shall be drained so as not to cause any nuisance on adjacent or public property. All surface stormwater shall be drained off the pavement for proper disposal to the designated areas or structures within a reasonable time, not to exceed six hours. All drainage lines and structures

shall be maintained properly at all times to insure full efficiency.

- d. The lighting thereon shall be so arranged and designed as to prevent any glare on adjacent property. Such facilities shall be arranged for convenient access and safety of pedestrians and vehicles. All residential parking lots in Group H Occupancy, as defined by the [South-Florida Building Code](#), shall be provided with a minimum of one-half foot candle of light on the parking and walking surface from dusk until dawn. A maximum to minimum foot candle level shall not exceed a ratio of twelve to one (12:1). The lighting system shall be designed and installed as not to create spill lighting or glare onto any adjacent property not a part of the site plan. Parking lot lighting must be reflected on site plan.
- e. All car stops, curbing and sidewalks shall be maintained properly to insure safe and convenient vehicle and pedestrian traffic at all times. Broken, damaged or loose car stops and curbing and sidewalks shall immediately be repaired/replaced.
- f. All pavement markings and signage shall be maintained properly at all times to conform to the standards of "Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices". All parking spaces, stop bars, directional arrows, centerlines, edge lines and other pavement markings shall be painted properly to be clearly visible and well defined at all times. Stop signs and all other signs shall be maintained properly at all times as to the size, height, material, design, location, visibility, clarity and other features to conform to the "Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices". [All pavement marking abutting the public right-of-way \(stop bars, direction arrows, lane markings, etc.\) shall be thermoplastic.](#)
- g. The off-street parking facilities shall conform at all times to the site plan as approved by the City, including, but not limited to the location and size of all regular and handicap parking spaces.

- h. All private commercial parking lots shall be inspected periodically ~~at least once a year~~ by the Engineering Department to insure proper maintenance and conformity to the approved site plan. The owner, tenant, manager, or their agent shall be notified in writing of any discrepancies and shall, within 30 calendar days from the time of notification, correct the discrepancy.

3.04 DRIVEWAYS, SIDEWALKS AND SWALES

A. Driveways.

Wherever vehicular entrances and exits are involved, the number, size and distance apart of entrances and exits and the specific design thereof shall comply with the established standards and requirements of the Florida Department of Transportation where a State or Federal highway is affected, and with the standards and requirements of the City of Lauderdale-by-the-Sea Engineer in the case of City roads or local streets. Where both State and City roads are involved, the higher standard shall apply.

B. Sidewalks.

1. Five-foot-wide sidewalks shall be installed in public rights-of-way. In a private area where there are no public rights-of-way, five-foot-wide sidewalks shall be installed which shall run parallel to all streets in the area.
2. The following requirements shall apply to all sidewalks, whether public or private:
 - a. Construction of sidewalks shall be required as a condition of:
 - 1) New site plan approval;
 - 2) Any modification of an existing site plan;
 - 3) Any renovation of a structure when the renovation exceeds five (5) percent of the assessed value of the structure during any twelve-month period, whether or not a site plan is modified.

- b. Design specifications shall be in accordance with the City's engineering standards, including required handicapped accessibility.
- c. In single-family residential areas:
 - 1) Sidewalks shall be on both sides of all streets.
 - 2) All sidewalks shall intersect with perpendicular streets.
 - 3) Sidewalks shall be constructed along the external street frontage of any integrated residential development.
- d. In multifamily areas:
 - 1) There shall be a sidewalk around the perimeter of each integrated development.
 - 2) Internally, there shall be clearly delineated, safe paved pedestrian pathways at least four (4) feet in width connecting the entrance of each residential building to the building's mailbox, and to all recreational facilities.
- e. In nonresidential areas:
 - 1) There shall be a sidewalk abutting all street frontages.
 - 2) There shall be clearly delineated, safe paved pedestrian pathways at least four (4) feet in width from major public entrances of buildings to parking lots, and from entrances of buildings to mailbox and dumpster locations.
 - 3) Sidewalks shall be constructed at least ten (10) feet from trees and three (3) feet from hedges. In situations where these requirements cannot be met, sidewalks shall be constructed in accordance with Sch. J Sec. 34 (C)(1) of the LDR.

C. *Swales*

- 1. *Landscaping and maintenance of swale areas.*

- a. All swale areas and water bank areas within the corporate limits of the City of Lauderhill shall be sodded in species normally grown as permanent lawns in Broward County.
- b. All swale areas within the corporate limits of the City of Lauderhill shall be free and clear of shrubs, hedges, asphalt, cement or rock substances, but concrete buttons shall be permitted if they are round, and not square or pointed at the top, or have no metal or wood protrusions, and are otherwise shaped in any manner so as not to be hazardous to persons or property.
- c. All swale and water bank areas within the corporate limits of the City of Lauderhill shall be maintained, kept in good repair and free from obstructions which may be hazardous to the welfare of the general public and further must be maintained by contiguous property owner.

2. Purpose of Swales

The swale area is intended to be utilized for draining surface waters from adjacent roadways and private property by percolation of the water through the soil. The swales lying within the City's boundaries, when properly constructed and maintained, effectively control the drainage of surface waters where there is an absence of other methods of drainage. The interference with the prescribed contours, the planting of trees or plants, and other above grade obstructions shall not be placed within the swale area.~~the use of materials which hinder the percolation of water through the swales seriously affect the drainage function of the swale areas, are a traffic hazard and health hazard, and cause damage to the road adjacent to the swales.~~

3. Construction, Maintenance Requirements

The following shall be minimum standards for construction and maintenance of swale areas:

- a. Paved swales are prohibited except in commercially or industrially zoned areas wherein the property owner may

pave the swale area, provided that prior to paving, he/she obtains a permit from the [City of Lauderhill Engineering Division](#) and provided for subsurface drainage or other facilities to drain the adjacent land without runoff onto the lands of other property owners or onto the public right-of-way.

- b. The use and installation of any type of impervious paving, limerock, or stabilizing material to the swale area is prohibited.
- c. Swales shall be constructed and maintained as shown in the sketch on file in the Engineering Department.
- d. Paved areas on private property shall not be permitted to drain on the public right-of-way.
- e. Dome-shaped decorative blocks or markers shall not constitute items which interfere with the drainage of the swale areas and shall specifically be permitted along street rights-of-way, drives, and public walks in the City. These dome-shaped decorative blocks or markers shall have rounded surface areas and no corners which make a right angle projection corner interface. In the event that dome-shaped decorative blocks or markers are placed in the swale area, which shall be expressly permitted, then they shall be painted white or with a white reflective material.
- f. Concrete catch basin aprons may be installed in the area surrounding the catch basin where, in the judgment of the City Engineer, such installation will not adversely affect the drainage or percolation of the swale in the vicinity. An authorization permit shall be issued by the City Engineer for each instance where a concrete catch basin apron has been requested by the property owner.
- g. Concrete valley gutters or curb, and gutters shall be required in the roadway swale areas where the longitudinal slopes for the roadway pavement is less than the 0.5% or where the clear width of the roadway swale

between the edge of roadway pavement and the sidewalk is less than eight feet.

4. Swale Drainage: The swale drainage system shall be in accordance with the City's roadway section. Exfiltration trenches at the bottom of the swale may be required as directed by the City Engineer.

~~Swale drainage shall be provided according to the following formula:~~

$$\text{STORAGE (ac-ft)} = KHA t$$

~~where,~~

~~K = hydraulic conductivity~~

~~H = height to the center of gravity : $H = 0.833 H_{\text{total}}$ (v-notched swale)(ft)~~

~~A = wetted surface area (ft²)~~

~~t = 6 hrs for swale between road and sidewalk; otherwise t = 4 hrs~~

3.05 CANALS AND WATERWAYS

A. Drainage Canal Maintenance.

1. All property owners whose property abuts a public drainage canal within the City of Lauderhill, shall be required to remove all trees, shrubs, bushes, structures, docks, fences and/or any other such obstruction which interfere with right-of-way access to the water's edge or the maintenance of the canal property. Any obstruction (fence, sheds, trees, etc.) shall require a permit from the Engineering Division.
2. All property owners found to not be in compliance with subsection (1) hereof shall receive notice from the City Clerk, by regular mail, notifying them that they are not in compliance with this Ordinance and notifying them that they must comply with the terms hereof within ninety (90) days from the date of the notice. Property owners may apply to the Community Development Department within that ninety (90) day

compliance period for an additional ninety (90) days to come into compliance.

3. Property owners who fail to comply with the terms hereof shall be subject to ~~Article 1, Section 1-8 of the Land Development Regulations. (Ord. No. 93-163, 1-5-31-94; Ord. No. 95-115, 7-3-27-95)~~ the City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1-8.

B. Waterways

1. Design Standards.

- a. Development proposals containing proposed canals shall supply written conceptual approval from the South Florida Water Management District, Florida Department of Environmental Regulation, [Broward County Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department](#) ~~Department of Natural Resources~~, and/or Army Corps of Engineers along with the application for development proposal. Should canals be approved, construction shall be in accordance with the provisions of the applicable regulatory agency.
- b. All development shall meet the requirements of [Broward County Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department](#) ~~Broward County Water Resources Management Division~~ and South Florida Water Management District to control stormwater runoff, for the purpose of preventing flooding in adjacent areas, or pollution of water bodies.
- c. Where a development proposal includes provisions for deposit of fill, shores resulting from such deposition shall not exceed a slope of four (4) horizontal to one (1) vertical above two (2) feet below the design water elevation.
- d. After construction, natural vegetation shall be retained or replaced on the site in order to minimize and stabilize erosion and decrease pollution of the water body.

- e. For lots or parcels which are cleared adjacent to water bodies, silt screens shall be placed between the construction site and the water body to prevent erosion and siltation.
- f. No waterway or portion thereof shall be created within a public road right-of-way or within reservations dedicated for roadway purposes.

2. Permit Required

- a. No waterway, except those which are controlled and maintained by the South Florida Water Management District, shall be created unless a permit for same has been first approved in writing by the City Engineer.
- b. Application for such approval shall be made to the City Engineer, by letter, or upon such form as shall be prescribed, stating the reason for alteration or construction of the waters. This letter shall be accompanied by four (4) sets of plans prepared by an engineer registered and licensed to practice as such by the State of Florida, showing the location proposed cross-sections, structures in or across the waterway, and other details as may be required by the City Engineer.
- c. The City Engineer shall inspect waterways and all structures in or across any waterway during their construction period. As-built drawings shall be submitted to the City Engineer upon completion of all work in or across the waterway with as-built cross-sections of the waterway every one hundred (100) feet, or as often as may be necessary to determine the change in cross-section area.

3. Waterway Use

- a. No person, firm or corporation shall obstruct any public waterway within the City of Lauderhill by any means whatever.

- b. No person shall allow or permit any material to wash, run or flow from property owned by or under the control of any such person into any public waterway within the City in such a way that the waterway shall thereby become obstructed or polluted.
- c. All water intakes from any waterway shall be of a type that is easily disconnected for the purpose of cleaning said waterways. All intakes shall protrude no more than 5 feet from normal edge or water.
- d. The limitations on the use of motorboats are set forth in Chapter 5 of the Code of Ordinances.

3.06 STREET LIGHTS & UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

A. Street Lights

- 1. The City shall provide street lights for all new subdivisions with public streets within the City. The developer shall pay to the City, at the time that his plat is approved by the City Commission, the sum of one thousand dollars (\$1,000) per pole for the street lights. In the case of nonplatted developments, the one thousand dollars (\$1,000) per pole shall be paid by the developer at the time the streets are dedicated to the City.
- 2. All subdivision plats submitted to the City Commission for approval shall provide the necessary easements for installation and maintenance of street lights within the subdivision.
- 3. The street light poles shall be aluminum poles, with underground wiring. The design and spacing of the street lights shall conform to the remainder of the City's overhead street lighting system.

B. Illumination for Streets and Alleys

- 1. Private roads: Private roads in residential zoning districts shall be allowed in accordance with the following criteria:
 - a. *Street lighting* shall be provided to deliver an illumination equal to that provided for public roads, but not less than

an average illumination of one-half foot-candle within the roadway. The street light poles shall be made of concrete, fiberglass, or metal poles which meet the standards set forth below, and all cables and wires shall be underground. The poles and lines shall be located outside the roadway width.

- b. *Standards for light poles.* Light poles shall withstand wind loads as required by ~~South~~ Florida Building Code, latest edition. The pole shall be non-conductive, non-corrosive and shall be able to carry a minimum weight of 100 pounds at its top. Installation shall be done by direct burial. The pole material shall meet the following ASTM standards: D635, A153, A356, A319, A307.
- c. *Design style standards for light poles.* The design and style of decorative light poles shall be reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC).

C. *Illumination for Parking Areas*

Parking lots for industrial, commercial and recreational, subdivisions and for residential subdivisions with multi-family units or single-family attached units shall be constructed in accordance with Article III, Sec. ~~3.3 (1)(C)(6)~~ Schedule P Secs. 7, 8 & 9 of the LDR.

D. *Property Maintenance Code*

The lighting thereon shall be so arranged and designed as to prevent any glare or excessive light on adjacent property. Such facilities shall be arranged for convenient access and safety of pedestrians and vehicles. The lighting shall be maintained properly to deliver ~~an average illumination of 2.0 foot-candles at any point within the parking facility.~~ an average foot candle in accordance with LDR Section 8 and International Dark Sky Association standards.

- E. *Underground utilities.* Within the Planned Unit Development, all utilities including telephone, television, television cable, and electrical systems shall be installed underground. Primary facilities providing service to the site may be exempted from this requirement. Large transformers shall be placed on the ground and contained within pad mounts, enclosures or vaults. The developer shall provide adequate

landscaping with shrubs and plants to screen all utility facilities permitted above ground.

3.07 EASEMENTS

- A. Easements across lots or centered on rear or side lot lines shall be provided for public utilities where necessary and shall be at least twelve (12) feet in total width, or as determined by the Commission to be adequate.
- B. Where a subdivision is traversed by a watercourse, drainage way, canal or stream, there shall be provided a stormwater easement or drainage right-of-way conforming substantially with the lines or such watercourses, and such further width construction, or both, as will be adequate for the purpose. Parallel streets or parkways may be required in connection therewith where necessary for service or maintenance.
- C. Easements may be required for drainage purposes of such size and location as may be determined by the City Engineer. [\(minimum 12'\)](#)
- D. Easements shall be provided six (6) feet around all water mains, fire hydrants and meters and dedicated to the City of Lauderhill.
- E. No [below or above grade](#) structures (or gas tanks) shall be placed in easements.
- F. Easements shall be provided six (6) feet (plus one foot for each foot in depth below three (3) feet around all sewer force mains, 8" gravity lines, manholes and lift stations, and dedicated to the City of Lauderhill.

3.08 FIRE HYDRANT SPACING, [Fire Service Lines](#) & FLOW REQUIREMENTS

Fire hydrant spacing and water flow requirements for all fire hydrants throughout the City shall conform to the table set forth below and made a part hereof. Distances shown in said table shall be measured only in directions that a fire hose can be laid, and it shall be interpreted herein that a fire hose cannot be laid across any street having a width greater than twenty-four (24) feet of pavement. All fire hydrants shall have a minimum of twenty (20) pounds per square inch residual pressure while flowing the required flow as indicated in the table below. The City Engineer may require additional fire hydrants and/or water flow where he/she deems it necessary.

The table to be used for minimum fire hydrant spacing and flow requirements is as follows:

Zoning District	Maximum Fire Hydrant Spacing (feet)	Minimum Gallons per Minute	Minimum Fire Hydrant Branch Pipe Size
RS-4, RS-5	650 (All portions of each structure to be within a maximum of 325' from the nearest hydrant)	1,000	6"
RM-8, RM-5	500 (All portions of each structure to be within a maximum of 150' from the nearest hydrant)	1,500	8"
RM-18, RM-22, RM-45, RM-50, CO-1, C-2, C-3, CF, CR	300 (All portions of each structure to be within a maximum of 150' from the nearest hydrant)	2,000	8"
S-1	Same as RS-4 above, provided that no permanent structures greater than 500 square feet are constructed, where permanent structures are constructed the spacing and flow requirements shall be determined by the City Engineer.		
I-1, U-1, C-4	300 (All portions of each structure to be within a maximum of 150' from the nearest hydrant)	2,500 3,000	8"

Insurance Services Office Method (ISO): The ISO's technique for calculating required fire flow is documented in their publication "Fire Suppression Rating

Schedule". The term used in that document to describe the fire flow requirement is needed fire flow (NFF). The calculation for NFF is as follows:

$$NFF_i = (C_i)(O_i)(X + P)_i$$

where

C_i = construction factor

O_i = occupancy factor

X_i = exposure factor

P_i = communication factor

NOTE: The City of Lauderhill Fire Department must be contacted for fire flow tests prior to the calculation of required fire flow.

The point of service of all fire service lines shall be considered to be at the gate valve located at the property line or the gate valve located 6 feet away from the water main.

SECTION 4 - GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

4.01 APPLICABLE CODES:

A. GENERAL:

All construction and materials shall conform to the Standards and Specifications of the City of Lauderhill, ~~Broward County Department of Natural Resource Protection (BCDNRP)~~, ~~Broward County~~ Broward County Environmental Engineering and Permitting (BCEPD) - Envir, Broward County Health Department (BCHD), Broward County Traffic Engineering Division (BCTED), South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD), and all other local and national codes where applicable.

B. CONSTRUCTION SAFETY:

All construction shall be performed in a safe manner, specifically, the rules and regulations of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) shall be strictly observed.

C. SURVEY DATA:

Elevations on the plans or referenced in the specifications are based on North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88)~~National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929 (NGVD).~~

4.02. PRECONSTRUCTION RESPONSIBILITIES:

- A. Upon receipt of Notice of Award, the Contractor shall arrange a Preconstruction Conference to include the City of Lauderdale Utilities Division, the Owner, the City Engineer, the Engineer of Record and after obtaining an engineering construction permit from the Engineering Division.
- B. The Contractor shall obtain a "SUNSHINE One Call" Certification number at least 48 hours prior to beginning any excavation.
- C. Prior to beginning construction, the Contractor shall verify the size, location, elevation, and material of all existing utilities within the area of construction.
- D. The Contractor shall be responsible for damage to any existing utilities for which he/she fails to request locations from the City of Lauderdale Utilities Division. The Contractor is responsible as well for damage to any existing utilities which are properly located.
- E. If upon excavation, an existing utility is found to be in conflict with the proposed construction or to be of a size or material different from that shown on the plans, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer of Record, who will in turn notify the City of Lauderdale Utilities and Engineering Divisions.

4.03. INSPECTIONS:

The Contractor shall notify the City of Lauderhill ~~Utilities and~~ Engineering Divisions and the Engineer of Record at least ~~24-48~~ hours prior to beginning construction and prior to the inspection of the storm drainage, paving, sanitary sewer and water system.

4.04. SHOP DRAWINGS:

- A. Prior to issuance of an engineering construction permit, shop drawings shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Engineer of Record and the City of Lauderhill Utilities and Engineering Divisions for sanitary manholes, fire hydrants, valves, piping, lift stations and other accessories. Catalogue literature shall be submitted for water and sewer pipes, fittings and appurtenances.
- B. Individual shop drawings for all precast structures are required. Catalogue literature will not be accepted for precast structures.

4.05. TEMPORARY FACILITIES:

A. TEMPORARY UTILITIES:

- 1. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to arrange for or supply temporary water service, sanitary facilities and electricity to his employees and subcontractors for their use during construction.
- 2. Obtain construction meter with double CV assembly for all water used on job. All water used for cleaning, testing, etc. will be paid for by the Contractor. If water cannot be metered then it will be calculated.

B. TRAFFIC REGULATION:

1. Maintenance of traffic in the public right-of-way shall be in accordance with the MUTCD and BCTED.
2. All open trenches and holes adjacent to roadways or walkways shall be properly marked and barricaded to assure the safety of both vehicular and pedestrian traffic.
3. No trenches or holes near walkways or in roadways or their shoulders are to be left open during nighttime hours ~~without express permission from the Director of Environmental and Engineering Services of the City of Lauderhill.~~

4.06. PROJECT CLOSEOUT:

A. CLEANING UP:

1. During construction, the project site and all adjacent areas shall be maintained in a neat and clean manner. Upon final clean up, the project site shall be left clear of all surplus material or trash. The paved areas shall be swept broom clean.
2. The Contractor shall restore or replace, when and as directed by the Engineer or the City of Lauderhill, any public or private property damaged by the work, equipment, employees or subcontractors to a condition at least equal to that existing immediately prior to the beginning of operations. To this end, the Contractor shall do as required, all necessary highway or driveway, sidewalk and landscaping work. Suitable materials and methods shall be used for such restoration.
3. Where material or debris has washed or flowed into or been placed in water courses, gravity sewer, ditches, drains, catch basins, or elsewhere as a result of the Contractor's operations,

such material or debris shall be removed and satisfactorily disposed of during progress of the work, and the area kept in a clean and neat condition.

4. When working in and around existing drainage canals, appropriate silt barriers shall be installed as required by the BCDNRP.

B. PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS:

1. The Contractor shall maintain accurate and complete records of work items completed.
2. All "as-built" information submitted to the Engineer of Record and the City Engineer shall be sufficiently accurate, clear and legible to satisfy the Engineer that the information provides a true representation of the improvements constructed.
3. Upon completion of construction, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer of Record one complete set of "as-built" construction drawings. These drawings shall be marked to show "as-built" construction changes and dimensioned locations and elevations of all improvements and shall be signed by the Contractor.
4. All "as-built" information on elevations of sanitary sewage, paving and drainage shall be certified by a registered land surveyor.
5. As-built information on the water system shall include, but not limited to, locations of all valves, fittings, fire hydrants and water services and top-of-pipe elevation on 100-foot intervals at a minimum.

6. Prior to a final inspection by the City of Lauderhill, the Engineer shall submit two (2) sets of blueprints of "As-Built" construction drawings.
7. Upon a final inspection by the City of Lauderhill, the Engineer shall submit to the City ~~one (1) complete set of reproducible mylar,~~ five (5) sets of blue prints of "as-built" construction drawings, two of which are to be forwarded to the ~~Community Development~~ Engineering Department, that have been certified by a registered land surveyor and the Engineer of Record ~~and computer files of "as built" construction drawings on 3 1/2" floppy disks in AutoCADD release 13 format or latest revision.~~ Electronic files (PDFs) shall be submitted for all submissions. CAD files shall be included for all submissions.

4.07. EARTHWORK AND COMPACTION

- A. All organic and other unsuitable material shall be removed and properly disposed under those areas to be paved and for the full width of the right-of-way.
- B. Suitable backfill shall be used and compacted as directed by the Engineer of Record.

4.08 PAVING

- A. GENERAL
 1. All underground utilities shall be completed prior to construction of limerock base.

2. All existing pavement, cut or damaged by construction, shall be properly restored at the Contractor's expense.
3. Where any proposed pavement is to be connected to existing pavement, the existing edge of pavement shall be saw cut.

B. MATERIALS

1. Base course shall be crushed limerock ~~Miami-Elite~~ with a minimum of 60% carbonates of calcium and magnesium and a minimum Limerock Bearing Ratio (LBR) of 100.
2. Asphalt surfaces shall be ~~S-4SP-12.5~~ modified asphaltic concrete unless otherwise specified on the plans.
3. Reinforced concrete slabs shall be constructed of class 1 concrete with a minimum strength of 3,000 psi and shall be reinforced with a 6 x 6 No. 6 gauge wire mesh for all driveways within the right-of-way.
4. All driveways will be restored from edge of road to edge of sidewalk and graded to prevent standing water.
5. All grass swales shall be regraded to allow stormwater to drain from impervious surface to and stored in center of swale.
6. All sod will be restored from edge of road to edge of sidewalk.

C. INSTALLATION

1. Subgrade for roadway shall be compacted to a minimum of 98% of the maximum density (AASHTO T-180-74).

2. Base course material for paved areas shall be a minimum thickness of 8" placed on a single layer for streets (6 inches for driveways, and designated parking areas).
3. Base course shall be compacted to 98% of the maximum density as per AASHTO T-180-74.
4. Installation of the wearing surface shall conform with the requirements of the D.O.T. standard specifications for ~~type-1~~ asphaltic concrete or the latest revision for the approved Broward County mix.

D. TESTING

1. The finished surface of the base course and that of the wearing surface shall not vary more than ¼" from the template. Any irregularities exceeding this limit shall be corrected.
2. Density tests shall be taken by an independent testing laboratory, certified by the State of Florida where directed by the Engineer of Record or City Engineer.
3. All testing costs (paving) shall be paid for by the Owner except those tests failing to meet the specified requirements which are to be paid by the Contractor.
4. LBR test results and Maximum Dry density test results shall be approved by the Engineer of Records prior to installation of the base and subbase material.

4.09 WATER DISTRIBUTION AND/OR SEWAGE FORCE MAIN SYSTEM:

A. GENERAL

1. The Contractor shall notify the City of Lauderhill Utilities and Engineering Divisions and the Engineer of Record no later than 24 hours prior to making connections to existing systems. A City of Lauderhill Utility Division representative and the Engineer of record must be present.
2. No connections to the existing lines shall be made until pressure tests, for the water mains and sewer force mains, and bacteriological tests have been performed and the system is acceptable to the City of Lauderhill and the Broward County Public Health Unit.
3. Cleaning of newly installed piping systems shall be accomplished using pipe pigging methods. Open flushing shall not be allowed without prior approval of the Utilities Division. All water will be accounted for.
4. All efforts shall be made so that water and force mains cross above drainage lines with adequate cover and separation. If this is not possible, it shall be indicated on the plans.
5. A minimum of three (3) foot lateral separation (5 feet preferred) shall be maintained between water/sewer lines and below grade obstructions (ie., catch basins, ~~electrical conduit~~sewer concrete poles, storm sewers etc.). A minimum of seven feet 6 inches (7.5') lateral separation shall be maintained between water/sewer lines and above grade obstructions (ie., light poles, concrete poles, street signs, etc.). five (5) feet from trees. A minimum vertical clearance of 13 feet 6 inches (13.5') between final grade and any overhead obstruction must be maintained. A minimum one (1) foot vertical clearance shall be maintained between water/sewer lines and all below grade obstructions.

6. No trees will be allowed with 5' of water/sewer lines in public R/W. No trees will be allowed in Broward County Water and Wastewater easements located within private property.
76. Metallic indicator tape shall be place over all other utilities where crossing City of Lauderhill potable water and sanitary sewer infrastructure.

B. MATERIALS:

1. Pipe:

The water main and/or sewage force main shall be either polyvinyl chloride (PVC) or Ductile Iron Pipe (D.I.P.) and shall be designed for a minimum working pressure of 150 psi. -PVC pipe is only permitted within swale areas.

- a. PVC pipe shall be ASTM 1120 pressure pipe with iron O.D., Class 150 (DR 18), conforming to ANSI/AWWA C900-89 or C905-88 or latest revision and shall have push on rubber gasket joints.
- b. D.I.P. shall be Class 350 wall thickness (up to 12"), Class 300 (14"-18"), Class 250 (20" or greater) with interior cement lining conforming to ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51-91, or latest revision. Sewage pipe shall be either double cement conforming to ANSI/AWWA C104/A21.4-90 or latest revision, or polyethylene lined conforming to ANSI/AWWA C105/A21.5-88 or latest revision, or approved equal. The pipe shall withstand a working pressure of 350 psi. The joints shall be bell and spigot push on type, mechanical joint or flanged. Flanged pipe shall conform with the physical and chemical requirements as set forth in the Handbook of Ductile Iron Pipe of the Cast Iron Pipe Research Association.

2. Fittings:

Fittings shall be ductile iron compact mechanical joint type and shall be class 350 through 24" conforming to ANSI/AWWA C153/A21.53-94, or latest revision, and class 250 in sizes 24" and larger, conforming to ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.10-93, or latest revision, complete with glands, gaskets, bolts and nuts. All fittings shall be cement lined and seal coated with the same as pipe.

3. Valves:

a. Valves shall be gate valves for water (4"-12" in size), butterfly valves for water (16" and up in size), or plug or gate valves for sewer (all sizes) as approved by utility. A 6" thick concrete collar with a 12" radius shall be placed around all valves. Concrete collar shall support a minimum design strength of 3,000 psi.

- 1) Gate valves shall be iron body, fully resilient seat, bronze mounted non-rising stem, double disc, rated at 200 psi and conforming to ANSI/AWWA C509-94 or latest revision. Exposed valves shall be outside screw and yoke type. Gate valves shall be American Flow Control AFC-2500 or approved equal.
- 2) Butterfly valves and operators shall conform to ANSI/AWWA C504-94 or latest revision standard for rubber-seated butterfly valves. Valves shall be class 150 A or B and shall be Mueller, Pratt or approved equal.
- 3) Plug valves shall be semi-steel body, non-lubricated, eccentric type, with resilient faced plugs, and capable of drip-tight shut off at the rated pressure if applied at either port. Valves are

to be equipped with actuating nuts, cast iron handwheels or chain operators, with galvanized steel chains, as appropriate for the installation and type of operator. Valves shall be DeZurik Corp. Series 100, Clow Ful-Flow Model F5413 or approved equal.

- 4) Insertion valves can be considered by the utility for valves sizes up to 12". The ductile iron body, bonnet and wedge provide strength and a pressure rating that meets or exceeds the requirements of AWWA C515. Insert Valve shall be ductile iron construction meeting ASTM A536 Grade 65-45-12 and shall meet AWWA material specification of C509-09 for resilient seal valves suitable for potable water. 250 psi maximum working pressure shall be cast into the body of the insert valve.

b. Air Release Valves

- 1) Sewer Force Main Air Release Valves - System shall be a combination of one sewage air release valve and one sewage air/vacuum valve with dual isolation plug valves. Both valve bodies and covers shall be of cast iron construction, ASTM A126-B. All internal parts shall be of stainless steel, ASTM A240 - Type 304 and ASTM A276 - Type 303. The venting orifice shall be 5/16" in diameter with stainless steel seat. The inlet openings shall be a minimum of 2" NPT screwed connection for both valves. The valves shall be fully capable of operation in sewage force main. Both valves shall include a back-flushing feature for periodic cleaning of the internal mechanism.

The overall height shall not exceed 22 1/2 inches. Valves shall be manufactured by Val-Matic Corporation, model numbers 48S/301S BW, or approved equal.

- 2) Water Main Air Release Valves - Valve body and cover shall be of cast iron construction, ASTM A126-B. All internal parts shall be of stainless steel, ASTM A240 - Type 304 for the float and ASTM A296 - Type 316 for the linkage. The venting orifice shall be 3/16" in diameter with brass seat. The inlet opening shall be a 2" NPT screwed connection. The overall height shall not exceed 13 inches. Valves shall be manufactured by Valve and Primer Corporation, model number APCO 200A, or approved equal.
 - c. A reflective pavement marker shall be installed in the center of the nearest lane of road pavement adjacent to all valve locations outside the road pavement. Water markers shall be white, sewer markers shall be green.
4. Fire Hydrants:
- a. Fire hydrants shall have a minimum 5 1/4" valve opening and shall open against the pressure and closing with the flow. Hydrants shall be Mueller Centurion, model number A-423 or equal. Hydrants shall meet or exceed ANSI/AWWA C502-85, C503-88 or latest revision, and shall comply with Factory Mutual Research Corporation and Underwriters Laboratories UL246 Standard.
 - b. A blue reflective pavement marker shall be provided in the center of the nearest lanes of road pavement adjacent to all fire hydrant locations.
 - c. Hydrants shall be painted with a reflective type yellow paint (OSHA Yellow or approved equal). [Fire Hydrant tops](#)

and caps shall be painted per NFPA 291 to indicate the available GPM.

- d. 6" 4" bollards shall be placed around fire hydrants. The bollards shall be painted OSHA yellow.
- e. A blue reflective pavement marking shall be placed in the center of the outermost adjacent line.

5. Detector Tape:

- a. Detector tape shall be 3" wide blue tape for water main and brown tape for force main with a metallized foil core laminated between 2 layers of plastic film. The words "CAUTION WATER LINE BURIED BELOW" or "CAUTION FORCE MAIN BURIED BELOW" shall be printed at 30" intervals along the tape. Tape shall be placed 18" below grade above all PVC mains and services or as recommended by manufacturer. Non-metallic tape shall be used above ductile iron pipe.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.5", Hanging: 0.5", Space After: 0 pt

- b. Metallic indicator tape shall be place over all other utilities where crossing City of Lauderhill potable water and sanitary sewer infrastructure.

6. Service Connections:

- a. Service saddles shall be Ductile Iron epoxy or nylon coated with double STAINLESS steel straps or single wide strap. Saddles shall conform to ANSI/AWWA C111/21.11-90 and ASTM A 588 or latest revision.
- b. Service lines shall be polyethylene (PE) tubing as described in ANSI/AWWA C901-96, or latest revision with a working pressure of 200 psi (DR 9). Pipe joints shall be of the compression type totally confined grip seal and coupling nut. Polyethylene shall be extruded from PE

3408 high molecular weight materials and must conform to ASTM D2737.

- c. Corporation stops shall be manufactured of brass alloy in accordance with ASTM B62 with threaded ends and shall be Mueller, Ford or approved equal.
- d. Meter stops shall be the 90 degree lockwing type and shall be of bronze construction in accordance with ASTM B62. Meter stops shall be closed button design and resilient "O" ring sealed against external leakage at the top. Stops shall be equipped with a meter coupling nut on the outlet sides, as manufactured by Mueller, Ford or approved equal.
- e. All meters and meter boxes are supplied and installed by the City of Lauderhill at the owner's expense.

7. Tapping Sleeves:

Tapping sleeves shall be cast iron, mechanical joint, Clow Model F5207, or approved equal.

8. Valve Boxes:

- a. Valve boxes for water mains and sewer force mains shall be U.S. Foundry Model 7630-7500, marked "Water" or "Sewer", or approved equal.
- b. Valve boxes for blow-off assembly shall be U.S. Foundry Model 7630 (No. 3) or approved equal.

9. Retainer Glands:

Retainer glands shall conform to ANSI/AWWA C111/A21.11-90 or latest revision. All glands shall be manufactured from ductile iron as listed by Underwriters Laboratories for 250 psi minimum

water pressure rating. Clow Corporation, Tyler, EBAA Iron, or approved equal.

10. Double check valve backflow prevention assembly:
The assembly shall conform to ANSI/AWWA C510-92 or latest revision and be capable of withstanding a working pressure of at least 150 psi without damage to working parts or impairment of function. It shall consist of two internally loaded, independently operating check valves, located between two tightly closing resilient-seated shut off valves, with four properly placed resilient-seated test cocks.

C. INSTALLATION:

1. General:
Connection of all new systems to existing mains shall be done using one of the three following methods:
 - a. Method A per Broward County Health Department Standards, which involves a reduced size temporary connection between the existing main and the new main.
 - b. Method B per Broward County Health Department Standards, which involves a direct connection between the new and existing mains using two gate valves separated by a sleeve with a vent pipe.
 - c. Method C approved by the Broward County Health Department, which involves a tap with one gate valve requiring disinfection of the new system prior to conducting the pressure test.
2. Bedding:
Bedding and initial backfill (12 inches above pipe) for all pipe shall be sand with no rock larger than 1" in diameter. Pearock or 3/4" washed rock will be used in water or where unsuitable

bedding exists at the discretion of the City of Lauderhill. All other fill shall not have rock larger than 6" in diameter. [Refer to typically bedding details for PVC and DIP minimum bedding requirements.](#)

3. PVC Pipe:
 - a. PVC pipe, where approved by the City Engineer, shall be installed in accordance with the Uni-Bell Plastic Pipe Association's Guide for Installation of PVC Pressure Pipe for Municipal Water Distribution Systems.
 - b. PVC pipe shall be installed with a minimum of 36" cover.
 - c. Detector tape shall be installed the full length of all PVC mains approximately 18" below grade, color side up.
4. Ductile Iron Pipe:
 - a. D.I.P. shall be installed in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C600 or latest revision.
 - b. D.I.P. shall be installed with a minimum of ~~30~~36" cover.
 - c. Identification tape shall be installed the full length of all D.I.P. mains approximately 18" above the main, color side up.
5. Valves:
 - a. All valves shall be installed with adjustable cast iron valve boxes with the word "WATER" or "SEWER" cast in the cover.
 - b. Main valves shall be located on an extension of the right-of-way line unless dimensioned otherwise.
 - c. Main valves shall be installed away from parking areas. If this is unavoidable, proper measures shall be taken to avoid the parking of vehicles over the valves. Hydrant valves shall be installed as close to the main as possible. Valves located in non-paved areas or in parking stalls

require a reflective pavement marker on the center of the nearest lane of road pavement. White-Blue reflectors for water main valves, green reflectors for force main valves.

- d. The distance from the top of the valve actuator nut to final grade shall be a minimum of 12 inches and a maximum of 18 inches.
- e. All valves placed within a landscaped area shall have a 6" thick concrete collar around the valve box. The collar shall extend a minimum 6" outside of the valve box and shall be a minimum 3" above the surrounding grade.

6. Service:

- a. Cover over service lines shall be 18" minimum, 24" maximum below finished grade and 24" under pavement.
- b. Polyethylene shall be bedded in backfill of sand with no rock greater than 1" in diameter.
- c. Meter stops shall have 8" to 10" cover or as required for proper meter/box installation.
- d. Water services under pavement shall be encased in a Schedule 80 PVC sleeve for the full length of the pavement and for 2' beyond the edge.
- e. The end of each service connection shall be marked with a 2"x4" treated stake, painted blue, extending 18" (minimum) above grade unless indicated otherwise.

D. TESTING:

- 1. The physical connection of the new system to the existing system shall be done in accordance with Section C.1. above which will dictate the order of the pressure testing and disinfection.

2. The complete water system shall be pressure tested and disinfected. The pressure test shall be for two hours at 150 psi minimum test pressure in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C600 or latest revision. The pressure test shall not vary more than ± 5 psi during the test. Leakage allowances will not be made for fittings or valves.

3. Allowable leakage shall not exceed the formula of:

$$L \text{ (gallons per hour)} = \frac{SD(P)^{0.5}}{133,200}$$

~~133,200~~ 148,000

L = allowable leakage in gals/hr (no allowable leakage for valves)

S = length of pipe tested in feet

D = nominal diameter of pipe in inches

P = average test pressure during test in lbs/sq. in.

4. The pressure test shall be witnessed by a representative of the City of Lauderhill Utilities Division and the Engineer of Record.
5. Sampling points shall be provided at the locations shown on the plans or as directed by the Broward County Health Department. If not specified, sampling points shall be provided at intervals of 1500' maximum for lines greater than 1500' in length. Provide a minimum of two sampling points for all other test segments.
6. Before acceptance for operation, the water system shall be disinfected in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C651-92 or latest revision with approved bacteriological samples and proper documentation by the County Health Department. Collection of samples is the Contractor's responsibility and will be witnessed by a City of Lauderhill representative.

7. All fire flow test shall be conducted on all proposed fire hydrants or as directed by the City Engineer in accordance with NFPA requirements. Results of the fire flow test shall be included with the final certification package to the City of Lauderhill.

4.10. GRAVITY SEWAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM:

A. MATERIALS:

1. Sewer Pipe and Fittings:
 - a. PVC sewer pipe and fittings shall be non-pressure polyvinyl chloride pipe conforming to ASTM D3034, SDR 35, with push-on rubber gasket joints unless otherwise noted.
 - b. Ductile Iron Pipe (D.I.P.) shall be double cement lined, conforming to ANSI/AWWA C104/A21.4-90 or latest revision, minimum pressure Class 350 (unless otherwise specified).
 - c. All fittings and accessories shall be as manufactured or supplied by the pipe manufacturer.
2. Manholes:
 - a. Manholes shall be precast per ASTM C478 Type 2 with 4000 psi concrete and grade 60 steel. Monolithically poured bases only.
 - b. Manhole openings are to be sealed with anti-hydro cement or approved equal. No molding plaster will be allowed.
 - c. Manhole joints shall be sealed with "Ramnek" gaskets or approved equal and with anti-hydro cement on the inside and outside.

- d. The rim elevation of all sanitary manholes located in a landscaped area shall be 8" above the surrounding grade elevation.

B. INSTALLATION

1. Pipe and Fittings:

- a. Sewer pipe shall be installed in accordance with ASTM D2321.
- b. D.I.P. shall be installed in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C600 or latest revision.
- c. Bedding and initial backfill (12 inches) over sewer mains and services shall be sand with no rock larger than 1" in diameter. Pearrock or 3/4" washed rock will be used in water or where unsuitable bedding exists at the discretion of the City of Lauderhill. All other fill shall not have rock larger than 6" in diameter.
- d. Pipe connection into manhole wall shall be ductile iron pipe grouted in-place or cast-in neoprene rubber boot, or equal as approved by the City of Lauderhill.
- e. No sewer shall be in the back yard of a residential lot.
- f. Gravity lines between manholes shall be 8-inch minimum diameter.

2. Manholes:

- a. Manholes shall be set plumb to line and grade on firm clean subgrade providing uniform bearing under the base.
- b. All openings and joints shall be sealed water-tight.
- c. The entire inside of the manholes shall be painted with two coats (8 mils each, dry) of Bitumastic coating or approved equal; first coat red, second coat black. The outside of each manhole requires only one coat (8 mils, dry) of the same type of coating.

- d. Manholes shall be installed away from parking areas on the centerline of the roadway. If this is unavoidable, proper measures shall be taken to prohibit the parking of vehicles over manholes.
 - e. Orange reflective pavement markers shall be provided on the center of the nearest lane of road pavement adjacent to all manhole locations outside the road pavement.
 - f. All lids shall be provided with a polyethylene watertight manhole insert, as manufactured by Southwestern packing & Seals, "Rainstopper" model, or approved equal to reduce stormwater inflow.
 - g. Manholes shall be set at a maximum spacing of 400 feet.
 - h. All manholes shall be accessible to a vac truck via an asphaltic road and be encompassed by that asphalt road.
 - i. Certain uses may require a private sanitary manhole immediately upstream of the public gravity sanitary sewer system equipped with a trash basket/strainer. The trash basket shall be maintained by the owner. The City Engineer shall determine which uses may require an upstream trash basket prior to discharge to the into the public gravity sewer system.
3. Service:
- a. Minimum slope of all service lines shall be as indicated in the ~~South-Florida Building Code—Broward County Edition~~.
 - b. Service laterals shall terminate at a depth 30" below finished grade.
 - c. Each service connection shall be plugged water-tight with an approved plug.
 - d. The end of each service connection shall be marked with a 2"x4" treated stake painted red, extending 18" (min.) above grade.

- e. Contractor shall rough in riser to 1 foot above finished grade and plug. At project completion, cut back to finished grade.
- f. Connection of services to building's plumbing shall be coordinated with the City's Building and Zoning Division, Plumbing Section.
- g. When a proposed sanitary lateral connection is made to an existing vitrified clay pipe (VCP) by a proposed development, the entire VCP pipe run (from manhole to manhole) shall be televised to confirm existing conditions of the VCP pipe prior to any excavation for the proposed connection. The inspection report shall be provided the Utilities Department prior to making the proposed connection. If it is determined the existing pipe condition is unsatisfactory the existing pipe segments shall be replaced as directed by the City of Lauderhill. The VCP pipe shall be televised after the connection is made and properly backfilled to ensure no pipe segments were damaged during the back fill operations. The inspection report shall be provided to the Utilities Department prior to final restoration for approval.

C. TESTING:

- 1. After construction of the sewer system, the entire system shall be lamped. Sewer lamping shall be witnessed by the Engineer of Record and a representative from the City of Lauderhill.
- 2. After construction of the sewer system, the City of Lauderhill or the Engineer of Record may require a visual infiltration and/or exfiltration test to be performed on the entire system or any part thereof.

~~3. An air test may be substituted for the water exfiltration test, upon approval of the City of Lauderdale.~~

43. Manhole exfiltration leakage shall not exceed 4 gallons per day per unit.

54. Sewer pipe exfiltration leakage shall not exceed 10 gallons per day per inch diameter per mile in a two hour test period for any section tested. A minium of 2 feet of positive head shall be maintained on the system during the duration of the test.

65. Visible manhole and sewer pipe infiltration leakage shall not be permitted.

76. Sanitary sewer shall be televised, at Developer's expense, prior to final approval of construction. Video tape and report shall be examined by the City of Lauderdale Utility Division. Owner/Contractor shall be responsible for correcting any deficiencies prior to the City's certification of completion to any agency.

4.11. WASTEWATER PUMPING STATION

A. GENERAL

1. Scope of Work

Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required and install, place in operation, and field test a wet well ~~mounted~~ submersible wastewater pumping station. The station shall be complete with pumps, motors, piping, valves, electrical work (including motor controls), structures, connection and

appurtenances, tested and ready for service. Refer to drawings for other site features.

2. Description of System

- a. The Contractor shall furnish and install one factory built, automatic-submersible explosion proof pumping station as manufactured by Flygt (Xylem Inc.) ~~Smith & Loveless, Inc., Lenexa, Kansas~~. The station shall be complete with all needed equipment, factory-installed on a welded steel base with fiberglass cover.
- b. The principal items of equipment shall include two vertical, close-coupled, motor driven, vacuum primed-submersible, non-clog sewage pumps; valves; internal piping; central control panel with circuit breakers; motor starters and automatic pumping level controls; heater, ventilating blower; priming pumps and appurtenances; and all internal wiring.
- c. Refer to plans for a complete list of operating conditions.
- d. The pumping station shall pump raw, unscreened, domestic wastewater into a force main which is pumped to a local manhole, or transmission system.
- e. The pumping station shall be include back up power connection during the event of a power outage.
- f. Preferred voltage for any size motor is 480V, 3 phase.
- g. The pumping station shall have a visual and audible alarm at the pump station when the high water float is triggered.
- h. The pumping station shall be equipped with a fully function SCADA communications system.
- i. The pumping station shall be equipped with an odor control device attached to the wet well venting pipe. The odor control device shall consist of a carbon filter or approved equal odor control device.

3. Qualifications

To assure unity of responsibility, the motors and control system shall be furnished and coordinated by the local pump manufacturers representative. The Contractor and pump manufacturer shall assume responsibility for the satisfactory installation and operation of the entire pumping system including pumps, motors, and controls as specified.

4. Submittals

a. Copies of all materials required to establish compliance with the specifications shall be submitted in accordance with the provisions of the general conditions. Submittals shall include at least the following:

- 1) Shop erection drawings showing all important details of construction, dimensions and anchor bolt locations.
- 2) Descriptive literature, bulletins and catalogs of the equipment.
- 3) Data on the characteristics and performance of each pump, data shall include a certified performance test, based on actual shop tests of the sale units, which show that they meet the specified requirements for head, capacity, efficiency, and horsepower. Curves shall be submitted on 8 1/2 inch by 11 inch sheets at as large a scale as practical. Curves shall be plotted from no flow at shut off head to pump capacity at minimum specified total dynamic head. Catalog sheets showing a family of curves will not be acceptable.
- 4) Complete master wiring diagrams, elementary or control schematics, including coordination with other electrical control devices operating in

conjunction with the pump control system and suitable outline drawings shall be furnished for approval before proceeding with manufacturer, standard pre-printed sheets or drawings simply marked to indicate applicability to this contract will not be acceptable.

- 5) A drawing showing the layout of the pump control panel shall be furnished, the layout shall indicate every device mounted on the door with complete identification.
 - 6) The total weight of the equipment including the weight of the single largest item.
 - 7) A complete total bill of materials of all equipment.
 - 8) A list of the manufacturer's recommended spare parts to be supplied in addition to those specified in paragraph 6.a. with the manufacturer's current price for each item. Include gaskets, seals, etc. on the list. List bearing by the bearing manufacturer's numbers only.
 - 9) All submittal dates required by the general conditions.
 - 10) Complete motor data.
- b. In the event that it is impossible to conform with certain details of the specifications due to different manufacturing techniques, describe completely all non-conforming aspects.
 - c. Upon receipt of approval of submitted material, provide five prints.

5. Operating Instructions

- a. At least three (3) copies of operating and maintenance manuals shall be furnished which will include parts lists of components and complete service procedures and

trouble shooting guide. The manuals shall be prepared specifically for the installation and shall include all required cuts, drawings, equipment lists, description, etc. that are required to instruct operating and maintenance personnel unfamiliar with such equipment.

- b. A factory trained representative of all major component manufacturers, who has complete knowledge of proper operation and maintenance, shall be provided for one (1) day at the station, to instruct representatives of the City and the Engineer on proper operation and maintenance and to perform initial start-up of the pump station. With permission of the City, this work may be conducted in conjunction with the inspection of the installation and test run. If there are difficulties in operation of the equipment due to the manufacturer's design or fabrication, additional service shall be provided at no cost to the Owner.

6. Spare Parts

- a. A complete replacement pump shaft seal assembly shall be furnished with each pump station. The spare seal shall be packed in a suitable container and shall include complete installation instructions. In addition, a spare seal gasket shall be provided.
- b. Spare parts shall be properly bound and labeled for each identification without opening the packaging and suitably protected for long term storage.

7. Warranty

- a. The manufacturer of the lift station shall warranty the structure and all equipment to be free from defects in materials and workmanship for a period of up to one year from date of ~~start-up~~acceptance, not to exceed 18 months from the date of shipment.

- b. Warranties by the suppliers of various components in lieu of single-source responsibility by the station manufacturer will not be accepted. The station manufacturer shall be solely responsible for the warranty of the station and all its components.
- c. The repair or replacement of those items normally consumed in service, such as seals, grease, light bulbs, etc., shall be considered as part of routine maintenance and upkeep.

B. EXECUTION

1. Installation

- a. Installation shall be in strict accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and recommendations in the locations shown on the drawings. Installation shall include furnishing the required oil and grease for initial operation. The grades of oil and grease shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. Anchor bolts shall be set in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations.
- b. The Contractor shall submit a certificate from the equipment manufacturer stating that the installation of the equipment is satisfactory, that the equipment is ready for operation, and that the operating personnel have been suitably instructed in the operation, lubrication and care of each unit.
- c. Installation of the ~~pump chamber~~wet well shall be done in accordance with the written instructions provided by the manufacturer.

2. Shop Painting

- a. Before exposure to weather and prior to shop painting, all surfaces shall be thoroughly cleaned, dry and free from all mill-scale, rust, grease, dirt and other foreign matter.
- b. All pumps and motors shall be shop coated, with manufacturer's standard coating.
- c. All nameplates shall be properly protected during painting.
- d. Gears, bearing surfaces and other similar surfaces obviously not to be painted shall be given a heavy shop coat of grease or other suitable rust-resistant coating. This coating shall be maintained as necessary to prevent corrosion during periods of storage and erection and shall be satisfactory to the engineer up to the time of the final acceptance test.

3. Inspection and Testing

a. General

- 1) The engineer shall have the right to inspect, test or witness test of all materials or equipment to be furnished under these specifications, prior to their shipment from the point of manufacture.
- 2) The engineer shall be notified in writing prior to initial shipment, in ample time so that arrangements can be made for inspection by the engineer.
- 3) The engineer or his representative shall be furnished all facilities, including labor, and shall be allowed proper time inspection and testing of material and equipment.
- 4) Materials and equipment shall be tested or inspected as required by the engineer, and the cost of such work shall be included in the cost of the equipment. The Contractor shall anticipate that

delays may be caused because of the necessity of inspection, testing and accepting materials and equipment before their use is approved.

- 5) The services of a factory representative shall be furnished for one (1) day, for the station, and shall have complete knowledge of proper operation and maintenance to inspect the final installation and supervise the test run of the equipment.
- 6) Field tests shall not be conducted until such time that the entire installation is complete and ready for testing, including permanent electrical power.
- 7) All components of the pump station shall be given an operational test at the pump station manufacturer's facility to check for excessive vibration, for leaks in the pumping or seals and correct operation of the automatic control ~~and vacuum priming systems~~ and all auxiliary equipment. Installed pumps shall ~~take suction from a deep wet well, simulating~~ simulate actual service conditions. The control panel shall undergo both a dry logic test and a full operational test with all systems operating.
- 8) Factory test instrumentation must include flow measuring with indicator; ~~compound suction gauge~~; bourdon tube type discharge pressure gauge; electrical meters to measure amperes, volts, kilowatts and power factor; speed indicator and a vibrometer capable of measuring both amplitude and frequency.
- 9) An operation and maintenance manual shall be provided to the City of Lauderhill's representative prior to startup testing.

10) The as-builts shall be geo-referenced in Florida State Plane.

b. Pumps

- 1) After all pumps have been completely installed, and working under the direction of the manufacturer, conduct in the presence of the engineer of record and a City of Lauderhill representative, such tests as are necessary to indicate that pumps conform to the specifications. Field tests shall include all pumps included under this section. Supply all electrical power, water or wastewater labor, equipment and incidentals required to complete the field tests.
- 2) If the pump performance does not meet the specifications, corrective measures shall be taken or pumps shall be removed and replaced with pumps which satisfy the conditions specified.

c. Motors

- 1) The Contractor shall check all motors for correct clearance and alignment and for correct lubrication in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. The Contractor shall check direction of rotation of all motors and reverse connections if necessary.

4.12 STORM DRAINAGE

A. GENERAL

1. Catch basin grates and rim elevations as shown on plans may be adjusted to conform to new or existing grades after approval from Engineer of Record is obtained.
2. Distances and lengths shown on plans and profile drawings shall be referenced to the center of structures.
3. All catch basin grates shall be oriented to align with centerline of drive.
4. Minimum pipe size shall be 18". A 15" pipe shall only be approved at the upstream most pipe segment serving a completely pervious area.

B. MATERIALS

1. Reinforced concrete pipe (RCP) for storm sewer shall conform to ASTM L70-79, Table III, Wall B, or latest revision. All pipes shall have modified tongue and groove joints, and have rubber gaskets, unless otherwise specified.
2. High Density Polyethylene Pipe (HDPE) for storm sewer shall conform to ASTM F2648. Pipe shall be joined using a bell and spigot meeting ASTM F2648 and the joints shall be watertight according to the requirements of ASTM D3212. Gaskets shall meet the requirements of ASTM F477. All fittings shall conform to ASTM F2306. The installation shall be in accordance with ASTM D2321 or as per manufactures recommendations. The maximum HDPE shall be 60".
- ~~3.~~ Corrugated aluminum pipe (CAP) shall be helical type, manufactured in conformance with ASTM B-209 and AASHTO

M-193, as manufactured by Kaiser Aluminum, Inc., or approved equal. The corrugation pattern and gauge shall be as follows:

DIAMETER	CORRUGATION	GAUGE
12" x 21"	2 2/3" x 1/2"	16
24" x 27"	2 2/3" x 1/2"	16
30"	2 2/3" x 1 1/2"	14
36" x 54"	3" x 1"	14
60" x 72"	3" x 1"	12

Pipe couplings for CAP shall be 12" wide (minimum), 24" for 60" diameter or larger. Split bands of the same alloy as the pipe, and may be one gauge lighter than the pipe. Polyurethane or other manufacturer supplied sealant shall be used with the couplings.

34. The rip rap headwalls shall be constructed of sand/cement with a minimum 2000 psi compressive strength to meet FDOT standards. The bags shall be permeable burlap, cloth or paper. A concrete cap shall be poured on top of sand/cement rip rap bags with a minimum 3000 psi compression strength.

45. All drainage structures shall be precast concrete as manufactured by U.S. Precast Corporation, or approved equal. Block catch basins will be allowed only with approval of the Engineer. The minimum wall and slab thickness shall be 8 inches and the minimum reinforcing shall be No. 4 bars at 12 inches each way, unless otherwise indicated. Concrete shall be minimum of $f_c = 3750$ psi at 28 days.

C. INSTALLATION:

1. Pipe shall be placed on stable granular material, free of rock formation, other foreign formations, and constructed to uniform grade and line.
2. Backfill material shall be well graded granular material, well tamped in layers, not to exceed six inches (6").
3. Provide a minimum protective cover of 18 inches over storm sewer and avoid unnecessary crossing by heavy construction vehicles during construction.
4. The contractor shall notify the local water control district at least 24 hours prior to the start of the construction and inspection.

D. STORM DRAINAGE PRE-TREATMENT/EXFILTRATION SYSTEM

1. Any conflict with existing or proposed utilities shall immediately be brought to the attention of the Engineer. Any impermeable material encountered in the excavation for the drainfield shall be removed as directed by the Engineer.
2. The trench liner shall be Typar spunbonded Polypropylene filter fabric as manufactured by the Dupont Company, or approved equal. It shall be used on the sides and top of drainfield ditch. The top section of the material shall be lapped a minimum of 24 inches and the Contractor shall take extreme care in backfilling to avoid bunching of the fabric.
3. Perforated pipe within the drainfield shall have 3/8 inch perforations 360° around the pipe with approximately 120 perforations per foot of pipe.

4. Perforated pipe shall terminate five feet (5') from the drainage structure. The remaining five feet (5') shall be non-perforated pipe.
5. Pipes shall terminate two feet (2') from the end of the trench or connect to additional catch basins.

SECTION 5 - DETAILS

[See Attached .pdf file of detail images to insert in code here]

SECTION 6 - FORMS

Editor's note— It should be noted that the forms designated as § 6 of Schedule L have not been set out at length but are incorporated into the Engineering Standards Manual which is on file and available for inspection in the office of the city clerk.

SECTION 2. Conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances, all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith be and the same are hereby repealed as to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 3. Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the City of Lauderhill, Florida Land Development Regulations; sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention; and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "article," "part," "section," or other appropriate word.

SECTION 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

DATED this _____ day of _____, 2019.

PASSED on first reading this _____ day of _____, 2019.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this _____ day of _____, 2019.

PRESIDING OFFICER

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

MOTION
SECOND

M. BATES
H. BERGER
R. CAMPBELL
D. GRANT
K. THURSTON

